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Wayne, Michigan

Thursday, September 18, 2008

MR. SARPOLUS: -- views, what am I doing here.

It"s a different change. 1 want to thank you for taking

the time in your busy schedule. And for me it"s more than

a busy schedule; it"s too beautiful outside and these

late

fall days to be inside, so it"s quite gorgeous. Tonight"s

event is a conversation about dropouts. And a brief

history and a little bit of background as we started doing

these dropout hearings back in May around the state.

Yesterday | was in -- last Thursday 1 was in Marquette,

Michigan. And out of the six or seven dropout hearings

we"ve had around the state each one has been different.

We"ve had different stories, different information

different programs how it"s working across the state and

it"s been a learning curve for us.

These dropout hearings are hosted or sponsored by

the Michigan Education Association, Michigan Association of

Intermediate School Administrators, Kent Intermediate

School District from West Michigan, Michigan®s Children,

Michigan®s Charter Schools, Michigan®s Promise and

Michigan®s Future. And what"s unique about the fact iIs we

come from different walks of life In education, not just

one association. What 1°d like to do is that -- Peggy

McLellan from the Education Association will read

in
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opening remarks before we get started.

MS. McLELLAN: Thank you, Ed. Thank you for
taking time out of your busy schedules to join us here
today to talk about a crisis that has a direct impact on
every one of us. You may have heard that about 20,000
Michigan students drop out of school each year. The impact
of this crisis on society is huge, including lower incomes
for dropouts, local communities with fewer well-paid
employees to support local businesses, and an economy
saddled with the perception that we lack qualified
employees for prospective jobs. It also costs taxpayers
about $127,000 per dropout in lost tax revenues and
increased public health, crime and welfare demands. The
numbers of our youth who are leaving school without a
diploma and their impact on our state are staggering. We
are here today to act because one dropout Is too many.

The dropout crisis is certainly a complicated
problem. No one strategy or reform model will work for all
schools or all students, but we shouldn®t back down from
trying to fix the problem or delay acting because it"s too
hard to solve. That"s why all of us as partners in this
effort want to hear your stories: why students drop out,
what impact that has on your community, why students return
to school, what works and, frankly, what doesn®"t. We will

present your stories and the findings of these hearings to
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political leaders and the public at the Michigan Dropout
Prevention Leadership Summit on October 20th in Lansing.
The information we gather through these hearings will
inform our leaders about how to develop the broad-based
solutions necessary to graduate more students from high
school who are ready to work, move on to college or other
training, and be an active participant in our economy and

our society.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you, Peggy. To put a little

more emphasis on that In studies that"s conducted annually
here in Michigan 13 percent of all new jobs go unfilled in
Michigan. Thirteen percent go unfilled, because the
employers cannot find qualified people to Fill those jobs.
And so as you have more dropouts there"s an increasing of
that unemployment factor not because there aren"t jobs but
because there aren®t people to fill them. About 80,000
technology jobs annually go unfilled, about a hundred
thousand health care jobs go to people from other states or
other countries, and in interviews with businesses across
the country one of the top reasons for not coming to
Michigan is not taxes but the perception of unskilled
workforce. And so solving this dropout issue iIs very big

here in Michigan as we try to turn around our economy.

Before we get started introduce our panelists who

will be listening to your testimony this evening. As you
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were -- when you came in you were asked to fill out a card
if you wanted to speak. We®"ll try to limit you to around
five minutes, but if you go a little bit over that"s not
going to be a problem. Then after you present the
panelists will be -- may be asking you a few questions.

So, Peggy, we"ll start with you with your
introduction.

MS. McLELLAN: Thank you, Ed. 1"m Peggy
McLellan; I"m the secretary/treasurer of the Michigan
Education Association.

MR. NAEYAERT: Are these working?

MR. SARPOLUS: Yes.

MR. NAEYAERT: Oh, good. Hi, my name is Gary
Naeyaert; I"m the director of government relations and
public relations for Michigan®s Charter Schools, which is
the trade association that represents the charter school
movement In the state.

MS. COREY: 1 am Michelle Corey. 1°m the
director of community advocacy for Michigan®s Children,
which #s a nonprofit private advocacy organization based in
Lansing. We do direct lobbying and advocacy with the
legislature and with congress and we also work hard to get
other people engaged in the policy-making discussion which
is why we"re so glad to be partners in this particular

effort. Thanks.
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MR. MAGIN: And I"m Kevin Magin; I"m the acting
superintendent here at Wayne RESA and welcome to our
facility. We hope you enjoy yourself this evening.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. And all your testimony
will be transcribed. 1It"s being videotaped so that the
legislature and the governor will be presented not only
with the audio portion of the visual but also
transcription. We"re expecting some 1200 pages of
testimony to be turned over to elected officials, so that
tells you there"s not a simple solution. The Ffirst person
this evening -- we"d like to talk to Derrick -- is it
Fries?

MR. FRIES: Fries.

MR. SARPOLUS: Fries. Thank you.

MR. FRIES: (Inaudible).

PANEL MEMBER: Yes.

MR. SARPOLUS: You actually get to sit down.

MR. FRIES: Thank you and good afternoon. Thank
you for having me. My name is Dr. Derrick Fries and I
started as a bus driver and retired as a school
superintendent and did special ed director, building
principal and the like in between that bus driver and
superintendent stop. | retired In 2006 and now am a
professor at Eastern Michigan University and have done a

comprehensive statewide survey on the effects -- and I™m



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

really looking into the future -- of the new Michigan Merit
Curriculum on a number of variables. |1 would think maybe
of all the testimony you"re going to hear over your things
there"s probably not too many other people that can say
they“ve done an authentic subjects reviewed survey where
1"ve spent 2,700 hours mostly in the records office of high
schools looking at predictors of math as that affects
students as they go through high school.

When the new Michigan Merit Curriculum was passed
the thesis from the Michigan Department of Education was
that would include -- improve employability, maybe limit
dropout rates and lead to greater efficacy on behalf of
students. My thesis was contrary to that; that the new
Michigan Merit Curriculum -- and I have some copies of my
study behind me if anyone in the audience wants to take
some. My thesis was that the new Michigan Merit
Curriculum, the 16 mandated credits particularly those in
math: Algebra I, Geometry, Algebra Il and math in your
senior year would have an adverse affect on employability
and on dropouts and emotional duress for students.

So that was the nature of my study. | gathered
data through both quantitative and qualitative means. This
was a grant that was funded by Eastern Michigan University.
I had a graduate assistant and the two of us just kind of

Jjumped into this thing full go and tried to provide some
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information about what we think"s going to head -- happen.

In the information 1 provided you there is a --

kind of an executive summary of some of the things that 1

did in that comprehensive survey. And it started off with

about 2,000 e-mails to curriculum directors, building

principals, high school building principals, alternative ed

building principals, special ed directors about the

questions on dropout rates and employabilities. And 1

gathered that and did a data chase on that since iIn my

analysis the biggest difficulty for students that 1 saw

with the new Michigan Merit Curriculum was the Algebra 11

standard.

Now, my thesis went that 49 other states offer

choice iIn the math curriculum. And let me define what |

think i1s choice theory. There are only four other states

that have four credits of math to graduate from high school

and that is North Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia and

Alabama. None of those four which have four credits have

the Algebra 11 standard. Now, one of the states, Alabama,

has Algebra 11 because they have a differential diploma.

So 1T you choose the college endorsed diploma you would

have to pass the Algebra Il standard.

So in theory we generally provide students or in

the past have provided students with choice. Maybe you

take, which would be typical

in the U.S., Algebra I,
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Geometry, and maybe one math elective and there would be
some choice theory in that for students as they go through
and kind of work out their high school careers. Since MMC
was adopted there is no choice theory for students because
it is set up now pretty typical Algebra I eight -- ninth
grade, tenth grade would be Geometry, junior year would be
Algebra 11, and then senior year would be a math elective.
So what 1 did to find out on this predictor model is 1 went
into twelve different high schools and 1 took four rural
high schools, four urban high schools and what I call four
suburban high schools and 1 did this around the state,
besides having four focus groups with professionals iIn
Wayne, Oakland, Kent and the Eastern U.P. 1SD"s on feedback
about dropout rates. That was part of my qualitative
piece.

IT you turn to the white sheet on the back it
says, '‘Chasing the Algebra Il credit.” And what I did in
this analysis is | gave you three out of the twelve high
schools that 1 looked at. And let me see if I can use some
mathematical projections of what -- how 1 come up with some
of my data. In the first high school where | pitched a
tent in the records office |1 found -- this was an Oakland
County high school -- 560 students graduated last year.

And I define in my study the Algebra 1l piece for students

who are special ed and at risk and 1 define "at risk" for
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students who have cumulative GPA"s under 2.0. Of the 560
students that graduated last year in this high school 68
graduated with less than a 2.0. Of the 68 that graduated
less than a 2.0 sometime in their four-year experience they
attempted Algebra 11 but only three received Algebra 11
credit with a D minus or better. Okay?

I move to the next high school, pitch a tent, get
in the records office and 82 students out of 451 graduated
with less than a 1.0. Of the 81 who I deem as the at
risk —- and this is an inordinate amount of generally
students both of color, special ed and students at risk --
had 2.0. OFf the 82 ten attempted Algebra I11; only two
received Algebra Il credit. And then I moved to a rural
county north of here about a hundred miles. 257 graduates,
44 students graduated less than a 2.0. Forty-four -- out
of the 44 seven attempted Algebra Il credit and only one
received Algebra 11 credit.

So on the basis of my statistical analysis we"re
running success rates for about 14 percent of our entire
student population. You know, there"s roughly -- right now
in Michigan high schools, earlier today there were roughly,
you know, 113,000 sophomores that have to get through the
Algebra Il standard as we speak and there®s roughly 113,000
freshmen that have to get through the Algebra 11 standard

by 2011. 1 can say by looking at -- on last year"s data
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that 1 know about 15 -- 14 to 15 percent of those students,
their success rate as we know it today is only about three
percent.

So if they don"t make it through any of the math
things and approximately 20 percent of Michigan®s freshmen
last year failed Algebra I, they"re already behind in
meeting the MMC standard. So in failing Algebra I last
year as a freshman, now a sophomore they"re already behind
in the graduation standards and the typical remedy, of
course, would be to double up on math classes or go to
summer school. And I think everyone iIn this room knows
that that probably isn®"t a good remedy for at-risk and
special ed students.

Further on my data chase | declared January 25th,
2008 as our fTirst of this kind of starting this train wreck
that"s in progress, and so as students continue to get
behind In the math piece -- and we haven®t got to even the
science or the English piece -- we know that statistically
when students have problems with credits, as they go
through they generally don"t do a good job in recovering
those credits and generally fall into the dropout
categories.

On this sheet right here on question 5 -- and
I —- last year | did 34 presentations around the state on

my research mostly to school superintendents and ISD"s. Of
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all the people that 1 interviewed, professionals about the
new MMC standards that take affect for the sophomores and
freshmen now for 2011 88 percent thought that it would not
help employability. The green sheet is some sample
questions from the MME on the Algebra 11 standard. And we
know that when you interview students when they drop out
they generally say, you know, "Why am 1 -- why do 1 have to
take this?" 1It"s a relevancy question. Then they
generally state second, you know, there"s some issues at
home, some sort of domestic thing. And then third, you"ll
get to the more core topic: “Well, 1 struggle in math™ or
"l struggle in reading.” So if we go back to the relevancy
question, maybe sometime today when you"re bored you could
try four Algebra Il guestions yourself, see how you do on
the answers and apply that to all of our Michigan students
that now have to pass that Algebra Il standard.

So again, | want to go on record. It"s not that
I*"m opposed to high standards and it"s not that 1"m opposed
to Algebra 11; I"m opposed to the fact that a fundamental
American right is offer choice in the curriculum and now
Michigan is the only state in the entire U.S. that offers
no choice in math curriculum. |1 predict that roughly
20,000 kids last year left Michigan high schools chasing
8.4 core credits. So the average high school required

around 22.6 credits to get through high school. OFf the
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22 .6 most were electives, but 8.4 was the average around,
you know, 950 high schools in the state; that means, you
know, roughly two credits of math, two credits of English,
two credits of science. You get the idea. So i1If 20,000
students drop out chasing 8.4 credits because that"s their
tough subject, if we double that -- It"s not quite double
because it"s really 15 -- then I am predicting, if you look
on the front, a dropout rate which is the equivalent of
the -- you know, the atom bomb dropping of around 38,000
students dropping out in about 18 to 24 months from now.
So 1t would almost double at the rate that we"re at now.

So this is a critical question. House Bill 5943;
it was nice to hear Representative Joel Sheltrown listen to
some of my research and introduce House Bill 5943, but that
is very much an uphill battle because a lot of folks are
going to say, "Well, why should we change this law when it
hasn"t even run its full effect yet?" And | guess my
response is | guess if we want less dollars for education,
more dropouts, more crime, more money to go to the prison
population then we should probably do nothing, because
that"s what"s going to happen.

So 1°d love to share my entire research which
would probably take a couple hours to show you all my
pieces, but clearly with the current MMC standards we have

a catastrophic dropout rate that"s headed in the future
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that if we think one"s too many now, 36- to 38,000 is just
unbelievable.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you.

MR. FRIES: Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Any guestions?

MS. McLELLAN: Not a question really, but 1
wanted to thank you for sharing your research with us.
You®ve obviously done some serious work on this and -- 1|
was a high school teacher for most of my career and I know
that we have some very, very bright kids in high schools
who just aren"t math savvy. It"s not because they-“re
stupid; it"s because they just don"t have that ability,
just as some of them don"t have the ability to sing with
perfect pitch. And we haven®t yet made that one of the
high school requirements, thank God. But | just think that
it"s wonderful that you"ve done this. You obviously care a
great deal, so thank you.

MR. FRIES: Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Question?

MR. NAEYAERT: |If we"re going to go in order 1-°d
be happy -- Dr. Fries, 1 want to thank you too. 1 mean,
I"ve been having a number of these hearings and a number of
legislative hearings and it is refreshing to have someone
who has given it the kind of thought and the attention that

you have. 1 do have some questions for you though; your

15
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reference here that Michigan®s the only state that requires
Algebra Il as a core graduation requirement.

MR. FRIES: Yes.

MR. NAEYAERT: You mean Alabama®s requirement for
the -- what was the name of their degree that --

MR. FRIES: Well, their college endorsed diploma
about 48 percent of the kids choose that diploma, but for
the kids who don"t choose the college endorsed diploma,
Jjust a regular diploma Algebra 11 is not a standard.

MR. NAEYAERT: Okay. So Alabama has a two-
diploma system?

MR. FRIES: ™"Differential"™ is the word that they
would use.

MR. NAEYAERT: "Differential™?

MR. FRIES: Yes.

MR. NAEYAERT: A college endorsed and a non-
college endorsed?

MR. FRIES: Correct.

MR. NAEYAERT: So a college endorsed diploma in
Alabama requires Algebra 11?

MR. FRIES: Correct.

MR. NAEYAERT: Okay. No other state in the
nation requires Algebra Il --

MR. FRIES: Not to my --

MR. NAEYAERT: -- to graduate?
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MR. FRIES: Not to my research piece.

MR. NAEYAERT: And the only four states in the
nation that have four years of math credits?

MR. FRIES: That is correct. That is correct.
The average math credits in the U.S. is 2.76.

MR. NAEYAERT: And we"re at 4 now?

MR. FRIES: Correct.

NAEYAERT: Okay. In the research that you did a
number crunching for the students this -- these are the at-
risk students or students 2.0 or below?

MR. FRIES: Correct. And that -- that"s
everyone: regular ed, special ed, at risk.

MR. NAEYAERT: OF the -- like in high school,
number one, the suburban high school of 560 graduates, 68
were the ones that we looked -- you looked at?

MR. FRIES: Correct.

MR. NAEYAERT: The other 498 students -- or there
are 500 -- how many of them took Algebra I11?

MR. FRIES: Well, --

MR. NAEYAERT: What was their success rate?

MR. FRIES: 1 didn"t have time, money and energy
to look at that piece, because 1 figured that those groups
of students probably would have higher success rates. So I
didn"t actually examine the success rate of students

performing above the 2.0 level.
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MR. NAEYAERT: I mean, 1if | was interested in
evaluating the average height of Michigan man and 1 only
measured people that looked like Ed and 1 and only --

MR. SARPOLUS: (Inaudible) set.

MR. NAEYAERT: -- then the average height of all
Michigan men would be, you know, 5%9".

MR. FRIES: Right.

MR. NAEYAERT: That wouldn®"t be an accurate
statistical analysis of the average height of all men;
correct?

MR. FRIES: Well, remember that this thesis is --
looks at the MMC on the basis of at-risk and special
education students, so that was my core cognate group that
I looked at. So the statistical analysis | have is based
on that at-risk population. There Is no comparisons
between that at-risk population and a -- you know, the
first two core trials of average achieving kids. |1 didn"t
make comparisons on that.

MR. NAEYAERT: Okay. Your thesis proven by the
math that -- the research that you did was that the
students who are the poorest performers academically are
statistically less likely to pass Algebra Il as it"s taught
today?

MR. FRIES: Absolutely. And I -- and that -- we

can show that statistically. And my years as assistant
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principal, principal, special ed director, you know, that"s
right on the bottom of my seat.

MR. NAEYAERT: 1 mean, 1 wouldn®t say that that
thesis is one that could be challenged by common sense any
more than we might say that high achieving students are
likely to pass Algebra Il at a higher percentage --
right? -- than moderate achieving students or low achieving
students.

MR. FRIES: 1 think you probably could do —- I
think that"s probably a fair statement, yes.

MR. NAEYAERT: Okay. I would be interested by
way of comparison, even if it was one school or other
schools, because 1 don"t think we"ve seen -- I mean,
we"re —- many of us are familiar with the percentages of
freshmen last year who were having difficulty with Algebra
l.

MR. FRIES: Yes.

MR. NAEYAERT: But I don"t think we"ve seen
similar statistics --

MR. SARPOLUS: No, the only thing we saw was in
Traverse City with the fact that only one percent of kids
are failing Algebra 1, but they"re starting Algebra in
seventh and eighth grade so they have -- actually have a
head start before they get into high school, if you

remember that.
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MR. NAEYAERT: 1 mean, 1 think that"s kind of the
policy challenge before us. 1Is it safe to say that the
implementation of this curriculum may lead to fallout? The
question is then how to respond to that fallout. It would
be interesting to know how students taking Algebra 11
statewide are doing. But let me ask you a question about
Eastern Michigan only because you"re -- the Eagle"s; right?

MR. FRIES: Yes.

MR. NAEYAERT: We"re down with the Hurons. Do
you know -- because | assume you teach math?

MR. FRIES: No, I mean 1"m -- my undergrad
degree -- my undergrad degree®s from Michigan State and
it"s PE and math and 1 have a master®s from Oakland and my
PhD is from the University of Michigan in educational
administration.

MR. NAEYAERT: Despite the limitations that --

where you received your PhD, the fine institution in which

you received your BA, 1 wanted to ask if you knew -- if you
had a sense -- if you didn"t know precisely -- what the --
what level of high school math do you -- does Eastern

Michigan feel is adequate in order to succeed in college.
What level of high school math would they recommend?

MR. FRIES: Well, 1 think that -- 1 don"t think
that 1"ve asked the university in composites or the college

of education in a composite piece what their recommendation
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would be, but you know, the college has the largest special
ed department in the U.S. and, you know, that"s one of the
focuses, to make sure that all kids can learn and have
access to the curriculum. So I would say the university~s
requirement was we ought to at least give kids choice.

MR. NAEYAERT: 1 just heard an interesting stat
the other day from a professor at Michigan State who had --
was commenting about the need for our high school graduates
to reach a level of math competency so that when they get
to college they can take college math and not have to --
many students have to take remedial math to get them to the
point where they"re ready to take then college math and
that the remedial math is not a credit-earning course but
it brings them up to speed, so to speak. You were at the
same meeting.

MR. SARPOLUS: Was there also -- there was
another study -- ACT put out that if you just take Algebra
itself you have an 80 percent increased chance of actually
passing or getting through college, so —-

MR. NAEYAERT: Well, 1 think the stat that
Professor Shakrani had shared with us was that of the
students -- and this is at Michigan State | believe -- who
did not need remedial math; meaning they entered college
ready for college math -- those students, 62 percent of

those students went on to graduate; compared to the
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students who came to college without being ready for
college math who had to take remedial math -- interestingly
62 percent -- the same percentage of those students did not
graduate. So he was pointing out the fact that our high
school graduates who are going to college are not prepared
enough for the math that"s necessary to succeed in college.
And It"s not a math -- he was saying not a math issue; It"s
a learning issue. And 1 just wanted to throw that out
because 1 thought it was an iInteresting statistic and what
you thought of that.

MR. FRIES: Well, remember, in the many public
universities in the state you can go through and get many
degrees without taking a single math course at a -- at one
of Michigan®s colleges. 1 want to just add one other
thing. Macomb and Washtenaw County last year about 29

percent of all freshmen in those two counties failed

Algebra 1I.

MR. NAEYAERT: How many?

MR. FRIES: 29 percent; 29.5 percent.

MR. NAEYAERT: Thank you. [I"m sorry for all the
questions.

MR. SARPOLUS: That"s okay. We®"ll short you
later.

MR. NAEYAERT: Yup.

22

MS. COREY: Yeah, thanks. 1 just -- | think it"s
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more of a comment. The challenge to the education system
of kids who are over age and under credited iIs a consistent
challenge to the education system and the idea of utilizing
this Information, you know, dropout information. The point
is utilizing this information, as Gary had said, to think
about what are our policies, strategies moving forward, and
clearly what your research suggests is that we -- I mean
beyond the suggestion that we refine the curriculum
standards i1s that we certainly need to take a different
look at how we do credit recovery and maybe how we
determine the time frame necessary for kids to graduate
from high school. So I guess I -- that"s my comment.
Thanks.

MR. MAGIN: Thank you for your information, Dr.
Fries. | have had the chance to hear your whole
presentation earlier last year or so on, so I don"t
disagree. But let me play devil~"s advocate for a minute.

DR. FRIES: Sure.

23

MR. MAGIN: |If we do institute a —- if we go back

to a choice system and we have students not choosing to
take the higher level maths, are we going to turn out
graduates who are unprepared to go to college and
unprepared for the world of work and those jobs that Ed
talked about? We"ll get them out; we may solve the

graduation process, but have we done anything for our --
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betterment of our workforce and our long-term community
living if we don"t at least challenge them while we"ve got
them in high school?

DR. FRIES: Well, I would encourage everyone in
this room to go to one of the state prisons and interview
prisoners there. And that®"s one of -- parts of my research
that 1 did. And when you listen to prisoners who are
serving their time -- where | went was Kinross up in the
Upper Peninsula -- and listen to their stories about, you
know, what they had to go through and the difficulties with
school and now the cost to the taxpayers it"s a pretty
significant piece. So clearly I understand your point, but
there has to be a balancing act between, you know, the
interest, motivation and relevance for math and graduation
pieces and a state economy that"s struggling and might
struggle further 1t we have phenomenal dropout rates.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you.

DR. FRIES: You"re welcome.

MR. SARPOLUS: Next one is Margaret Sales Harner.

MS. HARNER: That was an interesting segue,
because just this morning our agency -- I"m from Student
Advocacy Center and our agency has been very involved in
the School-to-Prison Pipeline Initiative of the American
Civil Liberties Union and the Bar Association. And just

this morning there were findings from some of those studies
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that were reported out to the 2008 State Bar of Michigan

annual meeting and I have some things quoted here from that

presentation this morning, which is why the copies | give

you may be written up a bit because 1 didn®t have time to

do a final edit.

I am Margaret Sales Harner and 1°"m the program

director for Student Advocacy Center of Michigan. 1 am a

former teacher so 1"ve been iIn the classroom, I"ve seen the

situations there and 1 come then with 20 years of

experience helping kids get back into school, those kids on

the outside of the school door looking in and trying to get

back. That"s been my life"s work.

25

My experience and the experience of our agency is

that we do not have a dropout problem; we have a push-out

problem. Ronald Lospennato, director of the School to

Prison Reform Project, was quoted today at the 2008 State

Bar of Michigan annual meeting entitled, "Justice

Initiatives: Incarceration or Graduation™ explore

alternatives to the school prison pipeline. And he says,

"It is not a problem with Kids; it"s a problem with the way

adults interact with kids." We must re-frame our

understanding of the problem. Children don"t drop out;

they receive a very clear message in numerous ways that

they don"t belong there. It is not a child problem; it is

an adult problem.

And until we internalize that shift and
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accept that mind set we will never change the reality of
way too many youngsters who are out of school without an
education and with no way to really provide for themselves
or ultimately their families.

So First and foremost we must shift our thinking,
change our language and develop new behavior. How do we do
that? 1 have several bullet points that actually we"ve
tried out and they really actually have been quite
successftul in our real life experience with kids. Every
child needs to connect and genuinely matter to someone in
the school setting. Every student should be able to
identify at least one person whom they trust. To be
successful this process of identifying the trusted other
must be student directed, not school imposed.

Second, additionally when problems arise with
either student-to-student conflict or staff-and-student
conflict there needs to be an intermediary, a mediator
available to deal confidentially with and negotiate for and
on behalf of the child; someone who can intervene, speak
for them and resolve the situation so that the child stays
in school. We need to be intentional in designing
flexibility that will accommodate students® frustration,
anger and alienation to avoid students feeling pushed
through the school yard door with it shut behind them.

Certainly we are all aware of the increased
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reasons in which schools are required to, in some
instances, and do in others, suspend and expel -- and *zero
tolerance™ is not a new term to any of you. And any of
those things: suspension, expulsion and zero tolerance
makes high school graduation highly unlikely. From this
morning"s meeting | share with you a little bit of data
once again, from Dr. Lospennato. Students are more likely
to drop out if: one, they have been suspended repeatedly;
two, they have been expelled for any period of time; and
three, they have been retained in a grade level below their
age level to peers.

The more days a student misses, the more likely
they are to drop out of school. African-American students
are 2.6 times more likely to be suspended as a white
student. In 2000 African-American students represented 17
percent of the student population but 34 percent of all
students suspended. Zero tolerance or the over
representation -- zero tolerance also has the over
representation of students with disabilities and minorities
who are suspended, expelled and/or in the juvenile justice
system and they can be exasperated by the fact that many
school districts have adapted zero tolerance policies.
Mandates predetermine consequences or punishments that do
not take into account extenuating or mitigating

circumstances.
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Zero tolerance does not work. All relevant
research, including a recent study by the American
Psychological Association, shows that zero tolerance
approaches do not result in safer more orderly classrooms.
Zero tolerance represents a lost moment to teach children
respect and a missed chance to inspire trust of authority
figures. That"s all quoted from his presentation this
morning. And then what works instead is positive behavior
supports and interventions. And, once again, from Dr.
Lospennato. What does work is multifaceted strategies. A
core aspect of the strategy is using special education law
as the lever to get school-wide positive behavioral
intervention and supports.

PBIS is an evidence based system-wide method of
improving student behavior. PBIS"s premise is that
continual school-wide and individualized teaching, modeling
and recognizing and rewarding positive student and
recognizing and rewarding positive student behavior. PBIS
will reduce unnecessary discipline and promote a climate of
greater productivity, safety and learning. PBIS is
critical because it is a viable alternative to zero
tolerance. It will create a hospitable environment for
kids allowing them to remain in school, giving kids
diverted from the juvenile justice system or released from

jJuvenile detention the ability to succeed in school.

28
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And 1 can add here that the kids that I work most
closely with are kids that are involved in the juvenile
court and 1°ve been doing that work for 15 years. And the
kids that I work with are kids that are either in the
jJuvenile court because they®"re in foster care for abuse and
neglect, or children that are there for delinquency
reasons. And 1 would tell you that probably 80 percent of
the delinquents 1 work with are kids that are in the
Jjuvenile system because of things, because of charges that
were generated in the school environment.

And then 1 go on with my comments. The high
schools need to be retooled to creatively capture credit.
Students learn differently and it is important to
acknowledge experiential learning, real life experiences
including community service, work experience and other
community activities. We can measure knowledge gained
through life experiences and we need to make it worth
something, and that moves the students closer to
graduation.

Vocational preparedness needs to be respected and
seen as a viable reality. It is not a second or third best
to a college-bound track. Once again, we need to
creatively design ways to capture credit that meet the
requirements for a high school diploma. Student Advocacy

Center has been very successful in developing seamless ways
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for high school students to transition to post secondary
education. Developing strategies which result in the
blending of high school and post secondary educational
opportunities is very possible. Post secondary
opportunities need to include technical training and trade
certification or licensure in addition to community college
or four-year college and university enrollment.

I need to share with you just one story which is
brief. 1 am currently working with a young man; black,
poor, 18 years old who got into trouble at Ann Arbor~s
Pioneer High School two and a half years ago. His offense
did not result in an expulsion but a transfer to an
alternative high school within the Ann Arbor system. He
worked hard, turned his life around and did very well both
academically and behaviorally. He is now only four credits
short of graduating. With the blessing of the principal at
the alternative high school he attempted to enroll -- re-
enroll at Pioneer and was turned away to return to the
alternative program, which does not graduate students but
sends them back to their home school.

I was working with him to intervene in the Ann
Arbor system and with the semester already in progress he
decided to enroll at Ypsilanti High School. He takes
public transportation to get to school requiring a very

early morning start with one bus transfer. He has attended
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school every single day if he has the money to pay for the
bus fare. Our agency is now providing him with a bus pass
and we will for the remainder of the year and we expect he
will graduate. Should i1t really be this hard for a
motivated student to graduate from high school?

I have a copy of a letter which was written by
the principal of Pioneer High School which spells out very
clearly the barriers for students that are on the outside
looking in. And as it turns out, the young man that 1 just
told you about did in fact meet all the criteria laid out
in this letter but he was still denied. And 1 have copies
of that letter and | share it because 1| just find it
amazing. This says,

"Alternative -- Criteria for Alternative School

Re-enrollment to Pioneer High School,”™ a public high
school .

Dear parent, guardian and student: In an effort
to create a successful transition for students from
Ann Arbor Public Schools Alternative Education
Programs to Pioneer the following criteria is
necessary: Students should have the following for
consideration for re-enrollment: Completion of a re-
enrollIment request packet; personal statement for the

reason of reentry, copies of academic records;

attendance and discipline profiles; a minimum of a 2.5
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grade point average from the previous two semesters;
90 percent attendance from the previous two semesters;
no more than three minor infractions and no physical
altercations; copies of IEP and MET reports if
applicable.

Should a student be accepted for re-enrollment
the student will initially reenter Pioneer High School
on a split enrollment basis for one semester. If the
student is successful during split enrollment the
student may petition for full enrollment at Pioneer
High School. If you wish to discuss your students
request please call. Sincerely,” --

The building administrator has signed it. Now, keep in
mind that that applies to students that have not been
expelled. This is not the expulsion process that"s
outlined in law. This is simply kids that have been in the
alternative program either because the school placed them

there or because they chose to go there.

32

So I remind us again, to address the matter -- to

address the matter before us it requires that adults change
their behavior, laws and policy, and 1 sure -- | assure you
that we will see a significant increase in the graduation
rate In our state. Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. Any questions?

MR. MAGIN: Just some comments. | want to thank
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you for your comments and positive behavior support borne
out of the fact that sitting where you were sitting
yesterday morning were two staff members from RESA
presenting the fact that they had just won an award for the
Michigan School Board Association for the county-wide
Positive Behavior Support Program. But you did say and I™m
sure you said that we should use the special ed laws in a
way to get positive behavior support into the schools. Let
me very critical. Positive behavior support is all about
everybody in the building being positive about every
student.

MS. HARNER: Right.

MR. MAGIN: And to turn it into a special
education issue is only going to doom it for failure. And
it comes from 28 years as a special ed administrator. It
has a lot of powerful things to offer. We need to get it
out of the world of special ed and into the world of every
ed and I think it will offer an opportunity to give kids a
better opportunity through middle school -- up through
middle school to be better prepared for what they®re going
to look for. Thank you for pushing in that area.

MS. HARNER: Yeah. Okay. And I think my
comments may have been misinterpreted. What I was
suggesting is that one strategy to move the school

district, either district wide in a local district or
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county iIn an intermediate school district -- one way to
push that is for the special education folks to push i1t for
everybody so that -- but that®"s kind of a -- that"s kind of
a way to kind of sort of come in rather than trying to
convince people that this is a good thing and it might cost
us more money and let"s do it for the whole district. So
it"s just a kind of the way to put that little extra
pressure there. That"s all | was saying.

MR. MAGIN: And unfortunately we"ve learned many
years that special ed has some great ideas for all kids and
the minute the special ed people push it, it becomes a
special ed issue whether it"s a general ed issue or not.
And I would still advocate that we need to get general ed
people, principals and administrators behind the concept
and keep the special ed people out of it; otherwise, it
will quickly be labeled like a lot of other things like
response to intervention and so on which are seen as
special ed issues and really aren"t.

MS. HARNER: Yeah. |1 agree with you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Anyone else?

MS. McLELLAN: Yes. Does your organization
provide the training and the tools for this particular
strategy you"re talking about? |1 mean, do you go to
schools and train?

MS. HARNER: Oh, yes. Oh, yes, we absolutely do.
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MS. McLELLAN: Okay.

MS. HARNER: And not only do we train the
schools, we also spend time training both foster care
workers as well as delinquency probation officers and other
groups on how we might sort of look at the situation
differently and what we can do for these kids that we can
almost be assured are going to be in that; in some
districts 50 percent or more of the kids that simply do not
graduate from high school. And certainly when they are
forced out of school for one reason or another that makes
the possibility of them trying to return less likely, and
if they do less likely to be successful.

MS. McLELLAN: Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. Next is Jeriel D.
Heard, Chief of Jails.

MR. HEARD: Good afternoon. My name is Jeriel
Heard. As you may know I am the Chairman of Michigan®s
Committee on Juvenile Justice to which | was appointed by
Governor Granholm, and I am the Director of Jails and
Courts for Wayne County Sheriff Warren C. Evans. 1 am
delighted to join you today to provide testimony on the
important issue of dropout prevention both as a member of
Fight Crime, Invest in Kids Michigan and also on behalf of
Sheriff Evans who is on Fight Crime"s state executive

committee. My comments today will focus on five main

35
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points.

High school dropouts are more likely to turn to
crime. High quality preschool increases graduation rates
and cuts crime. Increased investments In early education
are urgently needed. Cutting dropouts saves money and
lives. Law enforcement leaders -- the sheriff has been in
the business 35 and 1 32 years and crime victims are united
about this. Michigan faces a dropout crisis that poses a
significant threat to public safety. In fact it already
does. Statewide an estimated three out of ten high school
students fail to graduate from high school on schedule. By
one account more than 13 percent of high schools in
Michigan are essentially dropout factories, but I prefer
the school-to-prison pipeline analogy. Having been in
charge of the juvenile justice system in Wayne County 1 can
give you some very startling statistics on that after this
testimony.

Anyways Michigan are essentially -- high schools
are dropout factories where at least four out of ten
students become dropouts. Far too often today"s dropouts
are tomorrow"s criminals. We need to reset our sites to
turn this crisis around. High school dropouts are three
and one half times more likely than high school graduates
to be arrested and more than eight times likely to be

incarcerated. The per diem at the Wayne County Jail is
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$115 a day. My budget is $120 million dollars, 20 million
just for medical care and 10 million for mental health
services. The balance is for security. 45,000 individuals
are booked annually into the Wayne County Jail into 2700
beds.

Throughout the country 68 percent of state prison
inmates have not received a high school diploma, and it"s
probably higher in the Wayne County Jail. We believe that
by fully funding Great Start and Head Start we can cut
crime levels as we realize iIncreased graduation rates.
According to researchers a ten percentage point iIncrease in
graduation rates have historically been shown to reduce
murder and assault rates by approximately 20 percent.
Increasing graduation rates by ten percentage points would
prevent more than 140 murders and nearly 7,300 aggravated
assaults in Michigan each year. Many efforts are underway
in Michigan to increase graduation rates, but the most
tested and most widely adopted school reform shown to
greatly increase graduation rates is high quality, early
education or preschool.

Evidence from two long-term evaluations of the
effects of preschool programs, one of which was done in
Ypsilanti, Michigan, showed that participating in high
quality preschool increases high school graduation rates by

as much as 44 percent. Though both long-term research and
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our professional experience as law enforcement leaders --

excuse me -- through that we know that high quality

preschool

is one of the best weapons in our arsenal to

increase graduation rates and to fight crime. It is an

investment that we know works and it"s certainly cheaper to

invest at the front end than it is to house a criminal for

life. To iIncrease graduation rates we must insure that

children have access to high quality preschool, but in

Michigan there remains an unmet need. Due to a lack of

funding one in three eligible four-year-olds and four in

five eligible three-year-olds are not served by either the

state"s Great Start Readiness Program or the Federal Head

Start Program.

We appreciate the investments made thus far by

the governor and the legislature, an increase of $10

million in the past year, but we are asking them to do

more. And additional 10 million would serve nearly 3,000

more at-risk four-year-olds with a half day preschool

program.

In addition, by fully funding quality early

education we can boost graduation rates, save taxpayer

money and cut crime in the process.

To prevent dropouts and cut crime we ought to be

as willing to fully fund a child in preschool as we are to

graduate -- excuse me -- guarantee a prison cell for a

criminal.

Michigan®s dropout crisis not only threatens

38
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public safety, it also damages Michigan®s economy.

Dropouts earn less, pay fewer taxes, are more likely to
collect welfare and turn to a life of crime. If Michigan
can raise male graduation rates by ten percent the state
would save approximately $560 million every year, including
almost 350 million in reduced crime costs alone.

The data that 1 presented here today makes the
argument for us. We need to fully fund early childhood
education programs for all eligible children. All too
often young appear as defendants in trials or in the back
of squad cars. But I speak for more than 400 members of
Fight Crime, Invest in Kids Michigan when | say that we are
convinced that in order to cut violent crime and to save
lives and money Michigan should invest far more in high
quality, early education programs. We would much rather
see these preschoolers later on In a graduation cap and
gown than in a pair of handcuffs and an orange suit during
incarceration. Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. One of the interesting
things is the annual savings would cover the state deficit
every year that -- and budget crisis.

MR. HEARD: Absolutely.

MR. SARPOLUS: Yes. Interesting.

MR. NAEYAERT: 1 just wanted to ask a

clarification because you were reading fast. 1 appreciate



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

the testimony, but | want to go back to that comment you

made. Ten percent increase in black male graduation rate?

MR. HEARD: 1 didn"t use any ethnicity. We just

used a ten percent increase in male graduation.
MR. NAEYAERT: Oh, male graduation rate.
MR. HEARD: Yes, sir. It would save --

MR. NAEYAERT: Would translate to?

40

MR. HEARD: About a savings of approximately $560

million, 350 of which is related to crime costs alone. The
criminal justice process, not just imprisonment but the
cost of law enforcement, county jails. Just Wayne County
120 million.

MR. NAEYAERT: Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: That"s kind of amazing when you
look at the state deficit if that was done. The other
interesting thing in some studies that we did earlier for
part of this group back In June is one out of five dropouts
is either a gifted or an A student. It"s not just --
That"s one of the amazing things; the fact that it"s not
just those who are socioeconomically poor, those who can™t
study; 1t"s even our A students. Any other questions from
the panel?

MS. McLELLAN: Just I wanted to ask you about a
statistic. 1 think you said 68 percent of inmates. Was it

nationwide who are --
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MR. HEARD: Yeah, it was nationwide.

MS. McLELLAN: But 68 percent was the right
number?

MR. HEARD: Yes; that"s correct, have not
received a high school diploma. But we"ve done studies iIn
the Wayne County Jail. 1It"s closer to 80 percent. And
frankly, we"ve done reading -- we have DPS come -- Detroit
Public Schools come in to do adult basic ed. We"re finding
most of them are reading between fourth and sixth grade. 1
mean, we"re not even close to high school; we"re not even
middle school with this population.

And just let me put on my juvenile justice hat
real quick. We know that 45 percent of all the children
that have their Tirst contact with Wayne County Juvenile
Court have been chronically truant or suspended. And 1
have to be adamantly iIn support. These kids more often are
pushed out of school. In fact, I actually wrote grants
because there are many school districts in Wayne County
that didn"t even have one truancy officer.

So when 1 went back -- and that"s still true
today. And when I went to the superintendent 1 said, "What
happens it we don"t have the money?'" So if a kid, for
whatever reason, whatever the barrier is, whatever the
problem in the family, if they don"t come to school there®s

no ""there" there, folks. Nobody cares or loves enough
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about these kids to even ask, "Why aren"t -- why isn"t this
child in school?"” And that"s what we found. And I"ve
worked with Wayne County RESA on that issue as a matter of
fact with Dr. Blandina Rose, Dr. Phyllis Robinson. 1"ve
shared all this over the years with all of them.

MR. MAGIN: Yeah. Let me play devil®s advocate
again. Okay? |If I am a school principal out there iIn
Wayne Westland, Livonia, Inkster or somewhere else and I
have students who aren"t there, is it the school®s
responsibility to go find out where they are, or can I call
the police and ask them to go find out?

MR. HEARD: Well, this --

MR. MAGIN: Neither one of us have the funds to
do i1t is the problem.

MR. HEARD: Well, it depends on what our
priorities are. 1In this case | have done it and sure has
Wayne County Sheriff Warren Evans. And when we had, you
know, a prosecutor around he went around to every school
district and said it"s a statutory obligation for the
school district to in fact enforce attendance. And so I™m
not here to blame, fine or finger point, Mr. Superintendent
or RESA director. 1"m just simply saying let"s not kid
ourselves, engage in the ostrich syndrome and act like we
don"t know there are thousands of kids not even getting

through middle school, let alone high school.
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MR. SARPOLUS: Matter of fact, the study that was
done earlier this spring 80 percent of kids said one reason
they were considering dropout or dropping out because they
felt no one cared about them.

MR. HEARD: Absolutely.

MR. SARPOLUS: And that was one of the big, top
issues that we saw in the study.

MR. NAEYAERT: Add on a clarification to it. |IT
I can distill your comments, I think what you were
suggesting is if you could do one thing to address the high
school graduation crisis it would be to fund and have high
quality preschool Head Start, Great Start programs?

MR. HEARD: That"s right. Get the best return on
investment without a doubt.

MR. NAEYAERT: 1 don"t quarrel with the comment.
What 1 wonder is that based on a study or statistics about

increased graduation rates for those who have had early

education?

MR. HEARD: Yes, that"s the whole --

MR. NAEYAERT: 1 mean, is this a --

MR. HEARD: -- Perry"s Preschool and that"s all
of that.

MR. NAEYAERT: 1 wanted -- 1 just wanted to know

where it was from, the --

MR. HEARD: Yes, the Perry Preschool Study. [I"ve
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worked with high schools over the course of years. | was a
part of the expansion of back-to-school programs in the
City of Detroit. You know, these are well-researched
documented studies that are longitudinally in excess of --
what? -- 25, 35 -- back in the "60°s.

UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE: I think 40; it"s 40 years.

MR. HEARD: 40 years; back in the 60"s they
started the study. So it"s not that we adults don"t know
what works. 1 don"t know iIf we have the political deal --
will to get it done. And frankly, I don"t care about being
Chief of Jails. 1If 1 could -- if 1 should shut down a
floor in the county jail 1 would save about $1.5 million;
that"s only 120 inmates average daily population. | would
do anything to shut down a part of my jail to give you the
money to expand preschool. 1| know my children and
grandchildren would be much safer. Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you, very much. Very good.
Next we"ll hear from Angela Romanowski. I hope I didn"t
abuse your name too bad.

MS. ROMANOWSKI: No, you did it exactly right.

MR. SARPOLUS: 1t"s probably because I was born
in Detroit.

MS. ROMANOWSKI: All those "ski®"s" around here.
Hi, my name is Angela Romanowski and I do thank you for

giving me the opportunity to be here tonight and as well as
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the rest of us to speak. I am a principal at a K-12 public
school i1n the City of Taylor. We have 700 students
enrolled at our school. This is our first year for twelfth
grade. And very happily and proudly I can say to this
point we have not had any students drop out from our high
school. And understanding what this is about we want to
make sure that we don"t have any high school students
dropping out.

At our school we truly believe that it"s a K-12
problem; 1t"s not a high school problem. And understanding
that certainly have, you know, considerations for things
like making sure that we have high expectations for all of
our students and that social promotion is not something
that we are contributing to. If students don"t have the
skills to move forward, then we need to make sure that they
those skills before we"re moving them forward. What we
don*t want to happen and what we, you know, promise to all
of our parents is that we will not have a student graduate
from us that is not able to read, write and handle
appropriate arithmetic.

And understanding that we also have found that
creating adult relationships, caring adult relationships as
many people here tonight have spoke about, is one of the
main reasons why a child will remain in school.

And with that, you know, we wanted to have an

45
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opportunity to tell you something that we"re trying that we
think i1s really going to work. We have created a program
in our high school called "Match™ and with Match we are
matching students to a supportive unit that they need. So
we understand that with 700 students and only 60 staff
members that we may not be able to match every student in
our school, so what we"ve done is we"ve reached out to the
community and to colleges around and we"ve matched students

with other members of the community.

Each of our students -- right now we"re starting

in the high -- meets with that match person two days a week
and they meet with them for about 30 minutes a day. And
they have the opportunity during that time to talk about
life, graduation, motivation, assistance with tutoring and
academic assistance if that"s what they need. And I guess
I should go back and preface with we have actually extended
the school day for our students and our students are iIn
school for seven and a half hours a day and we are still at
170-day plus calendar a year. While not all the students
are not happy that they"re in school that long during the
day, we have had the ability to offer this support during
the school day without taking away from their academic core
time.

We are in great support of the rigorous

curriculum that the Michigan Merit has put out there and
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understand that there are obstacles that all of us need to
be prepared to tackle, but we really believe that our
students can achieve those high expectations and we want to
see them be leaders, we want to see them be successful and
we want to see them be able to compete in a global economy
and the one that we"re competing in right now.

So understanding that, in addition with the Match
Program, with matching them, one day a week, every week,
we"re bringing in a guest speaker from the community and
that guest speaker is talking about careers and motivation
and success. But what we have realized is that our
students aren”"t getting some of the support at home and
there®s nothing we can do about that at home, but what we
do have the opportunity to do is something at school and
that"s our right to those students and that"s our
obligation to make sure that they have what they need in
order to be successful.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. 1"'m very familiar with
your district.

MR. NAEYAERT: Angela, 1 wanted to ask you about
the Match Program. [Is this the first year you“"ve done 1it,
or --

MS. ROMANOWSKI: This is the first year that
we"re doing it, yes.

MR. NAEYAERT: So it"s less than a month old?
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MS. ROMANOWSKI: 1t"s less than a month old, but
I"m telling you we"re getting some really great results
from it. And more than happy to come back and speak to you
about the results that we get from it. But we really
believe that these relationships -- we"ve gotten a lot of
great feedback from the students already that they are
enjoying it, they"re happy. The mentors are really
enjoying it and really being a part of it.

MR. NAEYAERT: How many students or what grades
of students are part of the Match Program?

MS. ROMANOWSKI: Currently we have ninth through
twelfth grade part of the program and that®"s just under 200
students that we have.

MR. NAEYAERT: And because you said you reached
out beyond your own teachers, did you say college students
and community members?

MR. ROMANOWSKI: Yes, we have. We wrote letters
to all of the colleges surrounding that would have the
opportunity to send us pre-student teachers or business
students; any students that would have the opportunity to
come back and meet with them and bring success stories and
motivation and build relationships with those kids.

MR. NAEYAERT: What kind of training do you have,
if any, for the community member, --

MS. ROMANOWSKI: We have our --
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MR. NAEYAERT: -- for the Match adults?

MS. ROMANOWSKI: Sure. Our high school counselor
is in charge of -- she meets with them ahead of time. She
gives them points; she gives them talking points. We also,
of course, are background checking the people that are
working with them, but she is kind of giving them a
guideline and working with them and training them ahead of
time before their meeting with the students.

MR. NAEYAERT: And are the meetings with the
students at school?

MS. ROMANOWSKI: They are at school.

MR. NAEYART: In the -- okay.

MS. ROMANOWSKI: Yes.

MR. SARPOLUS: Very good. Actually, we"ve been
hearing that around the state about these Match Programs.
Matter of fact, one we heard is it"s not based on adults;
it"s within the school and that four ninth graders have one
upper classman, and if you"re a sophomore and above it"s
one on one. Anybody else?

(No verbal response)

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you very much.

MS. ROMANOWSKI: Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: And another graduate from this
area, John Stewart.

MR. STEWART: Thank you very much for this
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opportunity. After I speak I may need the possible
security, and 1"m glad that someone®s here from law
enforcement. Oh, Martha, please, come sit here. No, nho,
no, really. My assistant is Martha Traford, a retired
public school teacher from Livonia; wrote the book on the
history of the Livonia Public School System and probably
has done more research on charter schools than very other
few people in the State of Michigan.

I"m an attorney of 33 years. |1 am a former state
representative of six years. | don"t want to talk about
myself but 1 want to talk about some of the experiences
that 1 have gone through. Born and raised in Wyandotte; K
through 12 in Wyandotte. Algebra I and Algebra 11 concepts
introduced to me in junior high; that school that used to
teach seventh, eighth and ninth graders. 1 am not a
defense attorney for Mike Flanagan and the Michigan Merit
Curricullum.

I am wanting to invite each and every one of
you —- 1 practiced law in Wayne County for 33 years and |1
took a sabbatical for six years, went off to Lansing and
you know how many session days the legislators work each
year. Not very many; not many more than 90. I want to
invite you to the State Board of Education Hannah Building
on Tuesday afternoon October 14th. 1 spoke with

Superintendent Flanagan this week. 1 am bringing in four
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heavy hitting expert witnesses. This is on October 14th at
1:30 in the Hannah Building. 1 have been assured by
Superintendent Flanagan that we will then have an adjourned
date where there will be at least an hour or two
presentation on the Bridge and Journey Programs at Plymouth
Canton School System and the Project Lead the Way
Curriculum.

I would hope that you would look to the people
that 1 am referencing today. It is still afternoon at
5:15. Mary McFarland High School, principal at Wyandotte
and Dr. Pat Cole superintendent there in the mid "60°s
before graduating in 1967, 1 had biology, chemistry and
physics. 1 had Geometry, Algebra 11, precalc and trig. |1
knew 1 wanted to be an attorney. Then there were nine
consecutive years of college. 1 thank God for my parents
paying it all and 1 graduated debt free. A bachelor®s, MBA
and law degree, Eastern, Wayne State, Michigan State.
Undergrad curriculum in pre-law included business
statistics, advanced composition and chemical engineering
to think analytically in best preparation for law school.

I approached Superintendent Flanagan and said, "l
want to bring some expert witnesses to address this dropout
problem to the State Board of Education.' He granted me
this time and 1 spoke with Ms. Eileen Hamilton and she

assured me this time on the agenda -- or the docket --
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forgive me; | still talk like a lawyer which is perhaps
better than a legislator. | served six years and | was in
caucus and listened to Mike Flanagan describe the
curricullum. Okay.

Shine a laser and look at 60-year-old Rick McCoy,
director of alternative education at Plymouth Canton. We
are almost the third largest public school system in
Michigan with 19,000 students. We"re about to surpass the
declining enrollment of Grand Rapids, which is dipping
below 20,000 students. And it may be due to home
schooling, it may be due to charter schools, it may due to
private schools. We are a growing school system with an
additional 200 students this year. We have built new
elementary schools. We"ve built a new middle school. You
know, we"re the one and only campus in the United States
with three public high schools with a ten-minute walk in
between each and 2,000 students at each: Plymouth, Canton
and Salem. And we send a ton of kids on to college.

That"s why at that time the Republicans didn"t
know what -- and now I have a capital "D" after my name.
They didn"t know to do with me so I was chairman of higher
education appropriations. Peter McPherson of Michigan
State stood up and said, "We want your students at our
university; they were so well prepared going through the

Plymouth/Canton School System.' Therefore, my First expert
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witness is Mr. Rick McCoy, director of alternative ed with
the Bridge and Journey Programs: How to Solve the Dropout
Problem directly answering your question, your iIssue.
Early intervention, counseling, monitoring, oversight,
tutoring. We inundate the Kkid, the student.

I am not a professional educator. Both of my
sisters taught public high school in Trenton for 30 years.
I went on -- 1 got off the path and went to law school. |
do not have an ed degree. | was recruited to be an
advocate for the second issue: Project Lead the Way.
Millions of dollars are spent by Ohio and Indiana.

I will be bringing in three expert witnesses:
Ms. Eileen Ballay (phonetic), curriculum director of Van
Buren Schools, and they have gathered up these kids that
want to drop out and involve them in the Project Lead the
Way curricullum. Teaches digital electronics, a very
practical vocational training and education. Eileen
Ballay, curriculum director of Van Buren School District,
is the shining star and she has implemented the Project
Lead the curriculum -- Project Lead the Way curriculum in
the middle school and the high school at Van Buren and
she"s rescuing and keeping a lot of kids in school and
making her very best efforts to graduate them.

I"m also bringing in Dr. Paul Kuwik from Eastern

Michigan University who is the assigned professor 28 years
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full time at Eastern, who is reeducating our high school --
middle school and high school teachers. Eastern has boot
camps in the summer to update the teachers, and Project
Lead the Way is the only stem curriculum: science,
technology, engineering and math, but Michigan®s got to get
with the program. Ohio and Indiana have separate line
items in their budgets for K-12 for Project Lead the Way.
Project Lead the Way will help prevent dropouts. Project
Lead the Way is implemented through middle schools and high
schools and I invite you to come to October 14th, 1:30 in
the Hannah Building when these expert witnesses will
testify.

And I want to leave you with a final positive
statement. 1 was the only legislator the last eight years
who"s given commencement addresses and 1 gave three at
Eastern, Western, Oakland University and | said the same
thing: higher education is the essence of recovery for our
economies. Thank you, Mr. Sarpolus and panel members, for
this hearing today and 1 look forward to seeing you
hopefully listening to my expert witnesses that I1"11 be
bringing to the Hannah Building on Tuesday afternoon
October 14th at 1:30. Any questions?

MR. NAEYAERT: Representative, could you just
give us the Reader®"s Digest synopsis of what the Project

Lead the Way is; what the content or the mission or the
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message of Project Lead the Way?

MR. STEWART: Reader®s Digest answer in one
sentence? How to incorporate more science and math and
practical vocational skills in the curriculum --

MR. NAEYAERT: That"s a stem focus?

MR. STEWART: -- implemented by Ohio and Indiana.
And Governor Granholm lived a half mile from me for 14
years. Michael Flanagan is a collegial professional
friend. | have said to them, "Why haven®"t we gotten with
the program?” They said, "We"re going to set aside time
for this to be presented on Tuesday afternoon October
14th." And I"m talking about Project Lead the Way.

I"m also taking Rick McCoy, director -- 60-year-
old director of alternative education for the
Plymouth/Canton Schools with me to highlight the -- 1 would
ask that you call them in. And John Stewart doesn®t need
to be present. |If you can talk to Rick McCoy about the
Bridge and Journey Programs, | mean, it"s a shining star.
And I had to ask him and get his permission, because I
said, "I"m going to shine a light on you, man. You®ve been
around.”™ Should Detroit adopt a Bridge and Journey Program
like Plymouth/Canton has? | say resoundingly yes. You
know, this iIs something you can adapt, the Bridge and
Journey Programs of Rick McCoy at Plymouth and Canton.

And 1"ve said to them -- 1"ve asked them,



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

56

Governor Granholm and Mike Flanagan, the toughest question
there i1s: "Why haven®t you taken the model, the Bridge and
Journey Programs and promoted that?"

Now, my dear friends are on board with me: Liz
Bower, Kathleen Strauss and Rich Turner so I"m walking in
with some people in support of me already on October 14th,
so I"ve got three of my seven jurors ready to go. I1"m a
lawyer; forgive me. Thank you again. |1 will be there at
your seminar or whomever iIs --

MR. SARPOLUS: 1t"s October 20th.

MR. STEWART: October 20th.

MR. SARPOLUS: Yes.

MR. STEWART: I will be there; that"s a Monday.
And I will say that in high school at Wyandotte 1 could
answer at that time quadratic inequalities, logarhythms,
rational inequalities and radical denominators, but 1
haven®t been -- and this is a handout that"s been provided
by Dr. Fries. So I"m just the luckiest guy in the world
with my K-12 and nine years of education in public schools
in Michigan. Thank you so much for this hearing.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you.

MS. COREY: It looks like there"s a question back
there.

MR. SARPOLUS: Just a quick question?

UNIDENTIFIED MALE: Could I ask him a question?
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Do you understand that the effort to get a hundred percent
of the children or students through Algebra Il is working
against the stem education preparation? It"s more
important for stem education that we get 50 percent of the
students through pre-calculus and calculus than it is
trying to get a hundred percent through Algebra 11. I"m an

engineer.

MR. STEWART: Okay. 1 would hope you would talk

to Dr. Kuwik of Eastern. 1 would hope -- oh, 1™m also
bringing in Dr. Charles Little as my cleanup speaker number
four; Dr. Charles Little who is the superintendent of
schools for the State of Indiana. And there"s got to be a
lot of adjustments and adaptations and compromises and
watering down of some of the requirements for Algebra 11I.
I mean, I -- you know, I went to school with kids whose
parents were employed at Wyandotte Chemicals and they were
far superior to me in their analytical math and science
abilities. But boy, they were great competition for me to
go on to college with and I had no particular talent for
math or science.

But 1 think it can be done. 1 hope you"ll -—-
regarding that issue | hope you®ll look back at Wyandotte.
But I will leave the answer to all the -- if you™ll show up
on Tuesday afternoon, October 14 when 1711 be bringing Rick

McCoy, Eileen Ballay, Dr. Kuwik and Dr. Charles Little.
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And they will be the 1:30 to 2:30 speakers in front of the
State Board of Education on that day and that time.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you.

MR. STEWART: Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Greg Cooper.

MR. COOPER: Good afternoon -- or this evening.
No windows in here, it"s hard to say. My name is Greg
Cooper; 1°"m executive director of secondary education for
Wayne Westland Schools. 1"m also a doctoral fellow at
Eastern Michigan University and | appreciate the
opportunity to speak with you a little bit today.

Our school district is as concerned as any school
district as far as declining enrollment or losing students.
We"ve got funding issues. Resources become very scarce for
students and the futures of our kids are really at risk.
And all of us iIn the educational field, of course, feel
very worried about that. We know that we®ve got worries
about kids that are traditionally academically challenged
and those borderline kids who always struggle with K-12
education with the raising of the standards, how do we
bring them along without having that previous foundation in
there?

We do know that we have to attempt to better
engage students to keep them connected to school. As you

had mentioned earlier, we"ve got a certain percentage that
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are some of the brightest kids around that are dropping out
Jjust because they"re losing interest. They"re not

losing -- they~"re losing connection with the relevance of
what high schools should be about. And then one of our
concerns at Wayne Westland, one of the -- one of our jewels
of our program we feel is the William D. Ford Career
Technical Center. And we®"ve got credible articulation
programs with post-secondary institutions to get kids dual
credit for college or some kind of a career pathway beyond
high school. And we do have a concern that this year”s
tenth grade cohort as they grow into eleventh grade where
those classes are beginning taking eleventh and twelflth
grade that the options may not be there for them to take
those classes if they“ve got to have such a focus on the
core.

Having said all that, my role here with our
school district is less about the consideration about why;
it"s more about what do we do with what we have, and that"s
what 1 want to speak to you today about. Necessity is the
mother of invention and I think our school district has
tried to do some pretty incredible things as relates to
what Angela had to say earlier. And | just want to bring a
couple of them up to you that we"ve tried really hard to
work at. One of the things that we know traditionally in

K-12 education is that we"ve got this archaic grading model
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and one of the things that Todd Henderson has helped us
with. With Kevin®s support and Joyce Felts support is
having -- beginning to have discussions about why we grade
the way we do and trying to get more consistent in those
venues.

The high school course content expectations have
made us look and really implement common pacing so that it
doesn®"t matter who you have as a teacher Kkids are getting
that consistent experience educationally as well as common
assessments that -- where the Kkids are iIn shape to be able
to take these assessments better than probably ever before.
One of the things that our high school did last year for
the first time for that ninth grade cohort, which is that
first group with the new high school graduation
requirements, Michigan Merit Curriculum, is for the first
time ever iIn Algebra after one semester the students had
failed, we identified two and three sections iIn our two
high schools: John Glenn High School and Wayne Memorial
School -- Wayne Memorial High School and we plunked them
back into Algebra 1A in the second semester and we found
that 60 percent of those kids, that all of them had failed
the first semester were able to pass that. And some of
those kids over summer school are now back on track to
graduate and we"re very, very happy about that.

One of the things that we"re most excited about
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are -- and I"ve got to really denote the wisdom of our
superintendent, our Board of Education at Wayne Westland,
our superintendent Greg Baracy -- is we had a summer
school, a high school program -- pilot program for $30 for
each class and there was up to three classes you could
take. If a student enrolled in a course that they needed
credit recovery -- of course, they had previously failed in
high school -- that halfway through the course at three
weeks 1T they were at a C minus or higher and had less than
300 minutes of absence we waived the first $90 fee for that
course. And at the end of the six weeks if they still were
at a C minus or higher we waived the other $90 fee. So in
essence we had kids that were able to get a high school
half credit for $30 if they were able to hit the criteria.
We ended up having 467 students enroll in this
high school summer school program. [It"s up by about 250
percent of what we®"ve had In the recent past. About -- not
about. 92.5 percent of those students earned high school
credit In this program. Out of those 467 students, that
counted for 917 seats, so about 2.2 seats per -- they took
two or more classes, most students did. And out of those
917 seats 774 of those students earned a C minus or higher,
so those kids were able to get that high school credit, get
back on track at a greatly reduced rate. And 84.4 percent

of all the occupied seats got this reduced rate high school
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credit. Twenty-five students from both high schools
graduated based upon successful completion, 25 kids that
would not have graduated high school without summer school.
That was eight at John Glenn and 17 at Wayne Memorial.
Overall 83 students from the two high schools were promoted
at the next level whether it was ninth grade to tenth
grade, tenth grade to eleventh or eleventh to twelfth
because of this program. And in essence that we felt the

program was very, very successful.

And one thing 1711 state i1s that, you know, you

may have read we"re having some real challenges within our
school district right now as far as seeing eye to eye, as
far as we"ve got contract issues and whatnot. But our
superintendent had a very strong business plan and that is
that i1t you"ve got over 400 kids who ended up recapturing
high school credit, how many more kids have hope when they
come back to school in the fall? How many of those Kkids
are you hanging onto? How many of those kids do you have
to hang onto to be able to pay for a program? You"re
talking ten kids per high school. If you hang onto that
you"ve more than paid for that program and you®"ve given

hope and life to those kids, hopefully.

62

Beyond that, some other things that we"re looking

at —- and 1711 wrap up real quickly here. One of the

things that we"re really trying to reach out to kids with
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is Michigan Virtual School. We®"ve got a lot of online
classes we"ve been offering. Traditionally we"ve used them
to go after AP credit or advanced placement credit and
that"s been very successful. Now, we"ve got our own core
classes that we feel very, very proud about but we pretty
have about one AP class in most of the core areas. So if
we offer AP chemistry, we don"t offer AP biology and that"s
where Michigan Virtual University helps us to be able to
really challenge those kids in that way.

Sometimes those kids -- also that kid that does
everything else under the sun and it may not fit in their
schedule, so what we"ll try to do to accommodate their
schedule and give them the best well-rounded experiences,
sometimes we"ll put the right kid in a class for that. And
beyond that we also use what they call "flex 90" courses or
traditional high school courses for Michigan Virtual
University where there"s a highly qualified teacher on the
other end of the computer. And for kids -- like one of the
great things if you need a half credit in high school,
they“ve got this class called oceanography. Hard to take a
field trip to the Atlantic Ocean when you live iIn Wayne
Westland but it"s an opportunity for the kids to really be
able to experience that.

And then another program that we"re going after;

we piloted this summer in the summer school program that
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we"ve got is seventh-period credit recovery class. We"ve
used Plato, we"ve worked with Michigan Virtual School who
in turns works with Plato and -- P-l-a-t-o0 -- that"s
basically an online program that uses a pretest and post
test; it tests the kids in the various modules. If the
students get an 80 percent or higher they"re considered
proficient. They"re going to focus on their areas of
weakness. And within each of these classes we had a highly
qualified teacher there, because sometimes these kids need
extra help, extra support. And we want to make sure that
they"ve got someone, a real live living human being they
can go to and get help from, and that worked out really
well.

In the summer program in the math section in the
morning we had Algebra 1-A and Algebra I-B; we had Geometry
A and B. And then for English we had ELA9-A and -B, 11-A
and -B and 10-A and -B and we had an English teacher in
there as well. And the kids did very, very well. A lot of
kids were very successful at that at that. And what
motivates them is that they go at their own rate of speed.
IT you tell a kid in a summer program that if you work
extra hard you can get out of here in four or five weeks, I
mean, that really means a lot to them in the summer and at
there®s some hope that they didn"t have before.

And then something we"re rolling over into the
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fall is that we"ve got four seventh period credit recovery
programs. Again, we"re -- our goal is to get these kids
before -- to hopefully give them a heart message before
they die. You know, iIf we can catch them as they"re
falling we feel that that®"s going to be a very good thing.
So we"ve got in both high schools kind of a more
traditional English language arts class grade nine that
they can take.

But in Algebra it"s kind of interesting. In one
high school they"re doing a unit recovery where kids who
have failed the unit test in Algebra A are plunked into the
seventh period class concurrently with this class. They
are re-taught it and if they can master and take that test
again that grade will replace the E they got during the
day. And you might have a different cohort of kids every
couple weeks depending on who did well on that part of the
test or that part of the curriculum and who didn"t.

And then in our other high school we"re using
Plato and we"re again using that pretest, post test for
mastery, and again, those kids are able to hit those areas
of need that they really, really need. And then the other
last thing I*11 tell you about is that for our Career
Technical Center it"s that tenth grade cohort we"re looking
at. Our kids in Career Tech and Wayne Westland don"t

really hit those programs until grade eleven. We"ve got a
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We"re trying to figure out
into the practicality of t
them like electronics, bui
might have a natural fit;
as a natural fit. But we-
we"re working with differe
that hopefully we can do a
math related class for tho
and we"re looking at other
So 1 just wan
things that we"re doing.
gaining some momentum, and
kids along the way too.
MR. SARPOLUS:
MR. NAEYAERT:
couple questions, but Greg
statistics; | know he has
transcribe this for the bi
MR. SARPOLUS:
that in.
MR. NAEYAERT:
Greg"s comments? 1 mean,
them were very powerful.

it into the final product?
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ath person over at Career Tech.
how do we infuse mathematics
hese different courses. Some of
Iding trades, believe it or not,
some of them may not have as much
re trying to flush that out and
nt groups throughout the state;
better job at making at least a
se seniors in their senior year
options as well too.
ted to share with you some of the
We"re seeing some success, we"re

hopefully we"re saving a few

That®"s cool. Any gquestions?

I wanted to know -- Greg, 1 have a
went through a lot of
it handwritten. When we
g binder --

We"re going to call you to fill

To fill in from my notes, his --
the statistics he gave, some of

Are those -- how are those making
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MR. SARPOLUS: IFf we get a copy of that they"llI
be incorporated.

MR. NAEYAERT: So we"ll get a hard copy from
Greg?

MR. SARPOLUS: Yes.

MR. NAEYAERT: Okay. That will be very helpful.
Greg, 1 want to ask you two questions. You"re obviously
still on semesters; right? You haven"t switched?

MR. COOPER: Correct.

MR. NAEYAERT: So going back to Algebra -- a
again, no, I™m not an educator. So Algebra I is a one-year
course, and so what you"re saying is rather than wait "til
the end of the year and find out that they may have not
succeeded in Algebra 1, if they don"t pass the first
semester you“"re putting them back into Algebra I-A, the
first semester, again in the second semester. And then
assuming that they are on track, then they might take
Algebra I-B over the summer so that then when they start
their sophomore year they®re where they need to be.

MR. COOPER: Exactly.

MR. NAEYAERT: Do I understand that correctly?

MR. COOPER: Yes.

MR. NAEYAERT: And do you have a -- did you give
the percentage of students that had failed Algebra I the

first semester who in the second semester, you know, were
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able to pass?

MR. COOPER: 1 didn"t give that percentage, but
about the halfway point of the second semester which
correlated with the first half of the first semester —-
about 75 percent of the kids were passing and a hundred
percent had failed. By the time it had finished up they
had hit that same wall that they hit in the First semester
where they were into it and trying. And then also when
they gave up you saw that blip and they had to work extra
hard to hang onto it the second time around. So we ended
up at about 60, 62 percent of the kids ended up. But
again, 1f you compare that to a hundred percent that didn"t
make it.

MR. NAEYAERT: Right.

MR. COOPER: And then out of that group about 70
percent of the kids in the summer were able to recapture
that I-B that you were talking about and they"re back on
track with hope in their hearts.

MR. NAEYAERT: Let me ask you this then. I1f 1
was a student who took I-A and didn"t do well and I took it
the second semester, I-A again, is there anything different
about the instruction of Algebra I-A for my second time
around?

MR. COOPER: From a pacing guide point of you,

no, but what we really try to do is try to, you know, coach
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and recruit people who had that maybe different approach
with kids. So it really depended on the personality of the
teacher, but we really think we picked some good ones and
they did a really good job garnering that relationship
piece with the kids. That seems to be the key.

MR. NAEYAERT: What about the summer? Same idea?
I mean, you"re -- it"s really the same course, structured
the same way but taught -- and taught by the same people,
or --

MR. COOPER: Pretty much, but what"s interesting
is that because we had to staff at two and a half times
higher than ever before, we had the best mix of veteran
teachers and new teachers and everything in between. We
ran about 430 student surveys to find out -- obviously we
did something different -- why. And I°m crunching through
those numbers. 1"ve also surveyed all the teachers.
Obviously, the kids have done something different or you®ve
done something different; let"s try to get you to angle on
why and iIf we can get a handle on that we might be able to
apply it to other things. But by and large -- this also is
the first year that we had to ratchet up the courses in
summer school because we never offered Algebra in summer
school prior to this year because of this cohort of
incoming tenth grade kids, so we actually rose the bar

higher than ever before in the courses we taught.
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IT you do figure out how that

second time at I-A, you know, was more successful, maybe we

could do that the first time in I-A; right?

MR. COOPER:

MR. NAEYAERT:

districts in the

model --

MR. COOPER:

MR. NAEYAERT:

Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS:

Anything else?

PANEL MEMBER:

MR. SARPOLUS:

Exactly.

I mean, and 1 know there are other

state who would be interested in that

Absolutely.

—-- 1T you could figure that out.

Thank you very much. Yes.

No.

Now, actually we"ve learned in all

the testimony that one size does not fit all and you can"t

pigeon hole people in the learning process, so this really

confirms that.

On the other thing you talked about, some

testimony we"ve had earlier about the fact that some

schools we"ve looked at some other states; the fact that

they enroll kids in an aeronautic program, how to build

airplanes while they"re in high school. It teaches them

about math and

concepts.

No, they"re never going to go

into being a pilot or an aeronautic; it"s just that

relationship training between what they"re seeing in the

classroom and

real life.
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MR. MAGIN: Greg, I want to thank you for the
things you"re doing at Wayne Westland, but -- and the
statistics were powerful. It really is making a
difference. But I think the most important thing 1 heard
you say was it"s not that the kids have received the
credits; they"ve restored the hope that there is the
possibility they"re going to graduate from high school.

And so 1 think it"s that hope that is probably as valuable
as the credit; because you get the credit back, you could
easily fail something the next year or the next year. They
now know that iIf they struggled there®s still an
opportunity to get out of this. So you"ve restored not
only their credit but their hope, and that 1 think is going
to be the most successful thing for Wayne Westland. Thank
you.

MR. COOPER: Thank you very much.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. This is a follow-up on
what you were talking about. We"ll have Lisa Whitley.

MS. WHITLEY: Hi. 1 am actually -- my name is
Lisa Whitley. 1 work -—- I am the sales rep for Wayne
Oakland, Montcalm, Monroe County for Michigan Virtual
University. | actually work very closely with Greg as far
as classes and things like that. He was talking about the
oceanography. We actually do provide three different

opportunities for schools to use us, one being the AP
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program that he was talking about which is the more
advanced placement courses. And then he also talked about
the flex courses. The flex courses are your -- you know,
they can be some of your electives, your old languages.
They can be your Algebra courses. We do offer a lot of
flex courses for schools. Like he was saying, even with
the AP and flex the courses maybe they can"t fit it into
their schedule and they can take it online, they can do it
at home, they can do it -- they can be -- these courses can
be accessed 24 hours a day, seven days a week for these
students. So it really does make it very convenient for
them if they"d like.

He also talked about the student direct part of
it, which Is more of the credit recovery program that he"s
talking about as far as when they identify a student that
is not -- that is failing these courses. They are able to
Jjump Into the student direct and go through there -- and
like he said, I don"t know what it is but a lot of the
students really do seem to do better because the curriculum
is the same. We have made sure that with our flex courses
that we are aligned to the Michigan Merit Curriculum. So
we -- you know, we are right there with the schools and the
students really do seem to do very well with us.

We do a lot more than just with the teacher or

with the students as well. We provide courses which is
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sponsored by the Michigan Department of Ed which is called
Learn Port. Have you guys heard of it, any Learn Port? We
do Learn Port and we have over 263 courses. And they"re
now for their SBCEU"s that they provide, over a hundred of
them being free -- some of them now that they do have to
pay for but it"s a very low cost considering what they do
get in return for it.

So I was really here just to kind of sit in and
see what everyone had to say. 1 could answer any questions
that anyone may have regarding Michigan Virtual. 1 didn"t
really expect to talk today, but I just -- I did want to be
here to answer any questions.

MR. SARPOLUS: Any questions? 1%ve worked with
your organization, done research with your organization so
I"m very familiar. So any --

MR. NAEYAERT: [I"m not very aware, 1"m not as
aware as 1 could be, but I did want to ask this question.

I mean with -- included in the new Michigan Merit
Curriculum is the one semester of online learning?

MS. WHITLEY: Uh-huh; 20 hours.

MR. NAEYAERT: 1Is it 20 hours?

MS. WHITLEY: 1It"s 20, yeah.

MR. NAEYAERT: Okay. And so is that -- what is
the -- what is a regular run of the mill school district

offering for that and is it something -- is it programming
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offered through Michigan Virtual?

MS. WHITLEY: Some schools are doing it through
us. | mean, some schools are -- | know Plymouth education,
they are having actually all of their students take our
Mandarin Chinese course. So they have over, 1 think it"s
111 students that are taking our Mandarin Chinese this
course semester which is new. Some schools are doing it
that way; some schools are doing it their own way. Some
schools are using our Career Forward which is absolutely
for the schools that meet 20 hours online credit and kind
of teaching that in their schools. So there is --

MR. NAEYAERT: What is Career Forward?

MS. WHITLEY: Career Forward is a online program
for —- it"s meant to be taught in a blended environment.
They have to have a teacher; i1t"s taught at the school, so
you have 20 kids sitting In the classroom. They all have
to be on computers and it teaches -- the program actually
gets the students into thinking about their futures. They
have to do projects and find out resources. They have to
learn how to get resources, go to teachers. They have to
interview someone that they find that"s interesting, that
maybe they would like to be like. So it really -- it was
sponsored actually by -- Microsoft put a lot of money iInto
this so that schools could have this absolutely free and

still meet that 20 hours of online credit.
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MR. NAEYAERT: Would a Mandarin Chinese class
count double dip as both --

MS. WHITLEY: Absolutely.

MR. NAEYAERT: -- online learning and foreign
language?

MS. WHITLEY: As long as it"s 20 hours it
absolutely does, because our Mandarin Chinese is a
semester-paced program so it takes them all semester. So
they more than meet the 20 hours.

MR. NAEYAERT: Dramatically more than 20 hours?

MS. WHITLEY: Oh, yeah. All of our courses more
than meet the 20 hours.

MR. NAEYAERT: Well, how many hours would --
Mandarin Chinese for a semester?

MS. WHITLEY: Well, they say within a semester --
because we both trimester and semester. They say that they
want students on line an hour a day, five days a week,
so --

MR. NAEYAERT: Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Questions?

(No verbal response)

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. [1t"s great programs.

MS. WHITLEY. You“"re welcome. Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Someone with some experience going

through the system, Donna Bowman.
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MS. BOWMAN: Hi, there. My name is Donna Bowman
and my son is Cadet Nathan Bush and he®s currently in cycle
19 at the Michigan Youth Challenge Academy in Battle Creek.
And I*m here to stand up for the program. It"s for at-risk
kids ages 16 to 18 years old. Nathan was doing poorly in
school, failing classes and he just gave up. When my son
did the IEP testing at his high school in May of this year
I was told it doesn"t matter what he tests out at next year
they"re main streaming these kids anyway. Budget cuts
always seem to be cut from the bottom and not from the top.
I feel the public school system failed him. Not every kid
fits inside the box.

What 1 love about the MYCA is they see a problem,
they Tix 1t and it"s done. They don"t sit around and talk
about i1t for six months and try and figure out what to do;
they know what to do. My son is currently getting all A"s
and one B at MYCA and on the student council. He"s taking
culinary arts for his vocational training, and 1*d like to
note that there is no vocational training offered at his
high school in Garden City. He says he"d like to open up a
small restaurant pub and he"s talking about taking classes,
business classes in college.

In his letters he says he"s go -- he was going
down the wrong road and he realizes that now. He"s telling

his younger cousins to always do their best in school, and
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apologizing to his younger sister for picking on her and
wants to make it up to her. He feels bad about not being a
good role model for the younger kids on our block that
looked up to him, and all of this after only two months in
the program. And tell me where else can you get results
like that. The people there are tough but they really do
care about the kids and what happens to them. Not only do
they teach them academics, they teach them life skills and
I firmly believe in their eight core values.

Actually, 1 wish every Kkid in America could go to
this program. Our youth today have no idea what hard work
is because everything 1 feel has been given to them. All 1
can say is this program works and 1 wanted to ask that it
be continued to be supported. One of the parents said that
angels really do come wearing combat boots and I firmly
believe that. And I believe -- well, 1 feel that more
parents need to be aware of this program, that it"s an
option out there for kids who aren®"t doing well in
traditional high school and that"s it.

MR. SARPOLUS: 1 understand that that is a
federally funded program?

MS. BOWMAN: State and federally, yeah.

MR. SARPOLUS: And I also understand there®s a
waiting list? Not in your area. We were —-

MS. BOWMAN: Not -- no.
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MR. SARPOLUS: When I think we were in Marquette
we heard there was a potential waiting list, so that"s good
if there isn"t in your area, not a waiting list.

MS. BOWMAN: Right. 1 mean, there is
requirements to the program. You have to go to a briefing
and do certain, you know, things to get in, but he was able
to get into the program. They have very few girls that
apply to the program. 1 know all the girls are accepted
that apply, but yeah, so far. Well, they need to expand
it, if it ——- if there"s a waiting list because the program
really does work.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. We heard that up --
last week up in Marquette.

MS. McLELLAN: Yeah, we heard very positive
things from other parents whose kids --

MS. WHITLEY: Right.

MS. McLELLAN: -- had gone through that program
and they were thrilled with it.

MS. BOWMAN: Uh-huh (affirmative).

MR. NAEYAERT: Are there different locations?

MR. SARPOLUS: That"s what I was trying to find
out, but we heard when we were up in Marquette that there
was actually a waiting list and that they were fearful
there some of the kids weren"t going to get in. So this is

exciting, another part of the state actually talking about
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MS. BOWMAN: Right.

like 60 days.
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MR. SARPOLUS: Every parent said there was like a

60 day turn around; the kids went from zero to a hundred in

60 days.
MS. BOWMAN: Right;

style; you know, it"s very tough

right. And it"s a military

but -- and regimented, but

it works.

MR. SARPOLUS: Yes.

MS. BOWMAN: Yeah. Thank you.

MR. MAGIN: And I want to thank you for staying
there. 1"m sure your son didn"t go from a straight A

student to needing to go there overnight.

obviously a very long process of you and him agonizing

through things.

There must --

MS. BOWMAN: 1 had him in the Sylvan Center; 1

had him -- uh-huh.

MR. MAGIN: It is a credit to you that you"ve

stuck with him and you"re willing to look at really a truly

alternative option that meets his needs and so on.

MS. BOWMAN: Right.
MR. MAGIN: And one
is make sure we have the parents
MS. BOWMAN: Right.

MR. MAGIN: -- when

of the things we need to do

involved and we --

we look at options.

And that
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to change the K-12 system," because iIn your case --

MS. BOWMAN: Right.

MR. MAGIN: -- it wasn"t meeting it and you were

able to change, and thank you for that.

MS. BOWMAN: Right. And 1 only found out about

it -- a friend of his went through the program, you know,
and that"s the way 1 found out about it, but -- and I
asked, ""Well, how come more -- I never heard of 1t?" and 1
was told i1t"s the best kept secret in Michigan, you know,
because there®s no charge for it. Because 1 looked into
military schools before and $37,000 a year there"s just no
way, you know. So when that was brought up 1 looked into

that and

MR. NAEYAERT: Well, and since | don"t know
anything about the program; is it a four-year --

MS. BOWMAN: No. They go for five and a half
months and they have an option after that of either taking
their GED or getting four and a half high school credits,
so -- and then when they are -- there is -- after the five
and a half months there®s a one-year residential phase
where they follow up with a mentor and they meet with the
mentor, you know, two days a week, so --

MR. NAEYAERT: The five and a half months is

though in Battle Creek?
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MS. BOWMAN: Right; they stay there.

MR. NAEYAERT: 1t"s residential.

MS. BOWMAN: It is, yes. They stay there and
they provide everything for them. You know, there"s no
charge for it. So that®"s a nice option for a lot of
people, you know, so --

MR. SARPOLUS: Yeah, all the testimony up north,
all the parents had the same thing to say; they"re Kids
went from zero to -- like In 60 days their kids were
performing. Actually, many going from poor grades to A
grades In a short period of time, so it"s a really great
program.

MS. BOWMAN: Right.

MS. COREY: 1 think I would just say that -- two
things about it -- and I"m pretty familiar with the program
too, and one is that you had to find it by accident which
is a problem.

MS. BOWMAN: Uh-huh (affirmative).

MS. COREY: And if we"re really serious as a
state about thinking about how we"re providing some
multiple pathways for high school graduation and multiple
pathways for success we can"t have it be that really
industrious parents find them somehow or stumble on them
some -- we have to have a different kind of system for --

Jjust as you were saying, for having parents really

81
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understand what the options are; really understand what the
options are and be actively involved in trying to figure
out how to --

MS. BOWMAN: Right.

MS. COREY: -- put their kid in the option that
works, so --

MS. BOWMAN: Right. Because 1 did request some
pamphlets and 1 sent them to the principal at my high
school just to say that, you know, iIf there"s parents that
want an alternative this program is out there. But I don"t
know how many other people will do that, but yeah.

PANEL MEMBER: Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you very much. That was
very good. Dr. Richard Zeely (pronouncing).

DR. ZEILE: Ziley (pronouncing).

MR. SARPOLUS: Zeile? Excuse me.

DR. ZEILE: 1°m going to leave my coffee over;
I"m less likely to spill it there. | came here primarily
to learn but I thought 1 would burden you with a few
reflections nevertheless. | am a candidate for the State
Board of Education nominated by the Republican Party.
Unlike some members of our Board I do have a background in
education, a specialist in educational administration from
Wayne State. And | have run parochial schools in and

around Detroit for the last 15 years, helped organize a
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charter school, served as president of another charter
school i1n Detroit. So | have a great interest in many of
these matters.

The first reflection 1 would share with you is
that my father didn"t complete high school in the four
years; my father was a dropout. Was that one too many? My
father went to Ford Trade School and then he left before
completion of the program to join the Merchant Marine and
serve in World War 11. And eventually after marriage he
earned his GED and was a real asset to society and to his
son.

And I guess that®"s my First concern. The very
banner that we have: 'Dropouts: One is too many.” It"s a
problem by definition. We have now labeled everyone that
does not complete high school iIn four years. Some problems
are socially created or socially defined. If we"re
concerned about self esteem what does this banner say?
Caring people 1 observe also sometimes inadvertently send
messages. | have heard these young adults referred to as
children and youngsters and so on and so forth. [I"m sure
it"s out of affection, but I remember how I felt about
language like that when 1 was in high school.

A little historical reflection. August
Hollingshead wrote a classic study of Morris, Illlinois --

we weren"t supposed to give away that -- called Elmtown"s
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Youth and EImtown Revisited. And he found when people
talked about Elmtown®s youth they had in mind all the
people in Elmtown®s high school. He did some research. He
found that more than half of the young people between 16
and 18 were not in the high school. So where were they?
They were accepted as adults in the community. They had
found jobs, in many cases forced to. And they were --
indeed the path that they had chosen kept them in the lower
paying jobs: delivery, roofing, things that are necessary
to be done. In successful European countries where
everyone gets a college education they have the guest
workers from other countries come and do that kind of
menial labor, and so they can boast tremendous statistics.
But if you actually visit there, yeah, there"s an
underclass; they"re just not citizens and, therefore, don"t
count in the statistics.

Thomas Sowell did a wonderful study called
"Ethnicity in America" and he explored educational
attainments of various sociological groups. One of his
most surprising discoveries as he records is the cultural
values of Italian Americans, the bulk of whom had come from
Southern ltaly did not believe in schooling, resisted
sending their kids to school; and yet, these Italians, not
withstanding the myth of the Mafia, had among the lowest

crime rates of all the ethnic groups that he surveyed. And

84
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Sowell"s conclusion was that it is the culture values
rather than any institutional imposition that really
determines the socioeconomic place or attainment -- however
we want to describe it -- of people iIn American society.
At least measured as an economist measuring things like
income and educational attainment.

This kind of dovetails with Andrew Greeley"s
studies of Catholic schools in Chicago. He discovered in
the "70"s that Catholic schools had very little effect
religiously speaking on non-Catholics, and very little on
non-practicing Catholics, but they had an extremely
powerful effect on children from practicing Catholic homes.
And of course, the implication is that schools are very
powerful agents to reinforce the values being taught at
home but somewhat ineffective agents iIn terms of
counteracting those values.

I hope I"m not drawing too pessimistic a picture,
but 1 think it underlines the fact that this whole problem
of troubled youth is really an interdisciplinary one and
that"s been brought out very clearly. Even the matter of
truancy. Is that law enforcement? Is it family services?
Is 1t education? Clearly we need to have policies that
transcend these departments, and that requires rethinking
some of our policies and it requires some -- having a more

comprehensive and consistent policy for the state so that



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

86

other agencies besides the Department of Education can work
together for the success of young people.

And 1 guess to close -- my closing observation is
I -- one of the things that | hope to advocate, iIn fact the
chief thing that I hope to advocate is to make school
choice available to students in Michigan. And that is
certainly one of the conclusions that 1 come to listening
to accounts of many different kinds of programs: some
federal, some state, some partnership with the private
sphere, from different disciplinary backgrounds and styles.
And it certainly goes with my own experience that children
from the same family often require different kinds of
educational delivery systenms.

I ran a parochial school a hop, skip and a jump
away from Detroit"s Open School and there was a family that
had three sons in the first -- you know, open school you
pursue your interest. And the first son was really
interested in math and he really went with that; and the
second son was really iInterested in science, he went with
that; and the third son was really interested in breaking
windows and they decided to enroll him in our school. And
we had the very traditional lots of personal accountability
prescribed curriculum and strong traditional discipline.
And that was what this third son needed to prosper. |If he

had continued in that other school he undoubtedly would
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have dropped out.

So 1 am hopeful that perhaps we can re-frame the
issue so that we don"t define everyone who doesn"t fit in
the four-year high school box as a failure and that we can
make educational choices available if we define the state"s
interest as helping -- and | think we need to do this
narrowly rather than broadly. If the state®s interest in
education is seeing the children can read, write and do
arithmetic to whatever level, then it seems to me that a
criteria reference test like MEAP iIs a good way to compare
students from various and vastly different educational
programs and philosophies. Because the proof of the
pudding after all is in the skills and knowledge that they
attain. And one program will make singing on pitch part of
its requirement, and another one may make Algebra 111 part
of its requirement.

Certainly i1f you eliminate -- | was the victim of
-- 1 did two years of math and that"s -- that was what they
told me; that was the minimum they told me so that"s what 1
took. 1 didn"t realize at the time I was closing myself
off to a career iIn engineering and science and so on and so
forth. But having gone in another direction 1 guess |
haven®t missed it that much. But it"s hard for young
people to make those kinds of decisions, and their parents

as well. So thank you very much for your time and for
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MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. You"re probably aware
there is a push to try to remove the arbitrary four-year
standard from No Child Left Behind, and as you know the new
dropout program gets into look at dropouts not just at the
fourth year but looking -- so there have been changes along
those ways already, but there is -- been taken a lot of
pressure to do that. Any questions?

MS. COREY: 1 actually have one comment and that
is to just forcefully agree with you about the
interdisciplinary nature of high school completion or in
completion as a -- you know. 1It"s related to all sorts of
things that happen to kids along their life span in school,
out of school, schools as critical pieces and partners.

But there®s lots of other critical pieces and partners to
that too, and that"s kind of the theme of the October 20th
Dropout Prevention Summit actually this fall. So thanks.

MR. ZEILE: You“re welcome.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. And for those who --
before you leave us, for some of those -- we are getting
down to the last three. For those who want to add their
own testimony or some more testimony you can go to
www.mea.org/dropouts; we have a blog there. People can
continue to add information. We"ve had people testify from

Dallas, Texas at a blog so it"s gotten around. So if you
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want to add more testimony or friends or neighbors we do
have a sight that you can go to to do that. Michael Kell.

MR. KELL: Hi. 1I"m a principal at a high
school -- suburban high school in Southgate. And I don"t
have any of the research but I could just tell you what
I1"ve done all day long today and for the past few years.
And some of the -- everything 1°ve heard here 1 don"t see
anything that"s wrong. | think that the people that talked
about kids that in preschool, that if we put money into 1It,
that 1t helps them become more successful. 1 think that"s
all research based and true and very important. |1 think
the kids that have trouble, at-risk kids, 1 don"t think we
deal with them properly and I think that"s real true, and
you see It in our prison systems today. And 1 think that"s
all research based. And I don"t think any of that is an
issue that you talked about.

The other part that 1°ve heard you talk about is
the standards and there are several things in the standards
that 1 think we have missed the boat on. And a couple of
those things are -- the difference of the engineer that"s
very gifted in mathematics. You don"t have to decide
whether you should go farther in mathematics or not. |IFf
you"re not very gifted you®re not going to be an engineer.
I mean, I went to Michigan Tech where there was all

engineers up there. And 1 went through high school
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mathematics and when 1 got up there and saw what the
engineers were doing 1 wasn®"t going to be an engineer. |
didn"t have to decide whether I should sign up for the
classes or not. They were just very, very gifted.

There"s other Kids that are very, very gifted in
other things. You know, seven types of intelligences. |
don"t see any of the high school new credits or
requirements addressing any of that stuff. 1 graduated in
business rather than -- and we had to go through calculus
and quantitative methods, but statistics was more important
for a vast array of careers rather than just Algebra 11. 1
don"t see that as a part of the requirement. To me that
would have been a much more practical requirement in
mathematics than Algebra Il1. And 1 asked some of the
people, including Mike Flanagan, the last time, other than
when they had math classes or taught math classes that they
actually used some of those Algebra 1l concepts. And many
of the careers we have they"re just not using them right
now; they"re not a requirement to have them.

But when you listen to Daggett and some of those
people that do worldwide education, they don®t talk about
just having to have an Algebra 11 and that"s it for all
kids. Most of those countries that have those really
advanced mathematics programs their society splits after

ninth grade. They go into some different kinds of things:



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

91

the four-year colleges or some of the hands-on skill trades
things. We don"t do that; we want all of our Kkids to be
successful. But the part that -- in the standards there®s
a whole other topic that"s going to take way too long to
talk about and we have many ways that we have tried to help
kids recover credit and to stay in school and we"ve done a
great job with that. And none of this stuff that 1 say
anybody has to just write down and say this is what they do
or they don"t do. 1 invite any of them to come out and
look at the kids and how they behave in school with it.

Because one of the things that -- | was assistant
superintendent for twelve years in Southgate also and hired
teachers. One of the best things you can do for high
school dropouts -- and that"s researched based too -- is to
have teachers and hire teachers that develop relationships
with kids. When you have -- when you take care of
preschool they come ready to go, the parents are on board
with it and you have teachers and administrators that
develop relationships kids want to be there. Kids know you
care about them.

One of the very first things we do with every Kkid
that comes into high school is take each one of their
classes: tenth grade, eleventh grade, twelfth grade and
sit them in the auditorium and tell them that “what we are

going to do this whole year is work on your success and
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your happiness.”™ And it sounds stupid to say "happiness"
in high school, but in reality you can"t be successful if
you®re not happy and you®"re not going to be happy if you"re
not successful. And we talk about how -- the high school
diploma; how the Kids next to you -- how you behave with
kids; how you deal with the problems. You"ve got 1200 kids
on a school, you"re going to have issues, things -- people
are going to talk about stuff; all those things of the
relationships: how to behave, the character issues. And
we don"t just throw kids out. We do -- our administrators
are more counselors that have an ability to send a kid home
or bring parents in to discuss, and then we are about
trying to just suspend kids from school.

We know that that child doesn"t learn when
they"re out of the classroom and out of school, but we also
know we have some obligations on the safety, health and
welfare of the kids that are in the building. So sometimes
with poor behavior kids have to be out of that social
atmosphere. And the kids in the school want to be there;
they really and truly love to be in that school. They come
in early, they sit around, they have breakfast, they talk
and they stay after school whether i1t be iIn extracurricular
activities or just to sit around and talk. And it"s every
day without requirements. And what happens is, is that

they have developed a culture that this is their safe
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haven. Whether they have good family lives or not they
want to be there. And so iIf you want to prevent dropouts
after you do all the things with the beginning stuff and
the parents -- and setting standards is a whole other
issue. Once they have a relationship with you they"ll do
anything that you want in order to try and accomplish that.

One of the things we asked the teachers when I
hired them was, "Think back™ -- and everybody can do that,
is "think back in all your schooling, high school or
college, the very best person that ever taught you. Just
put that person In your mind, whoever it is, and then think
about that person.”™ And then | ask the candidate to tell
me: "'So who was that person?' And then they would say
whether it was a teacher or a coach or the band instructor,
whoever i1t was. And then I ask them, "So why were they
special? What made that influence on you?"” And every
single one of those Kkids you hire -- and you think about it
now and if anybody wants to answer you can hear the same
thing: "It"s that they cared about me. They really and
truly cared about me. They talked to me as a person. They
were hard on me but they also cared about me and they
helped me be successful_"

And 1f you want to change your dropouts that"s
how you do it. You get people that care about Kids.

Administrators: 1"m the principal; | talk to kids every
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single day. There are times -- it"s not all Ffluff and gift
though. I mean, that"s not the way that kids respond to
that, especially the tougher kids. You"ve got to remember,
in education most of the people were very good students.
They listened to their teachers. They went to school every
day. They came from good households. And so that"s what
they learned.

And that"s how -- and you know, the person that
was in here earlier, this is not about him. He"s going to
be successful. This is about the kids that don"t have that
stuff. And so when you talk to those kids and you listen
to them -- we talk about the manners. You talk about how
to deal with problems. And if they learn how to do that
stuff, then they"re there. And there comes a time that if
a kid doesn"t behave that way, if they“"re rude or
disrespectful, we tell them, "You know what? If you behave
that way you can*t go to school here. Do you want to go to
school here?" "Yes.”™ "Well, you know you®"ve got a ninth
grade education now" -- and sometimes --

I mean, I"ve always used it long before standards
for the graduation, is that "if you don"t want to behave
and you don"t go here why don"t you -- it"s time -- we"ve
tried and tried and tried and did this, all these things
with you. Maybe you should go outside. Tomorrow take the

day off and you go to every business you think you want to
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work at for the rest of your life. Tell them you®"ve got a
ninth grade education and you want to go to work and see
what kind of job you get. When you come back with three
places and you tell me what they said to you 1711 let you
come back to school.”™ And I™"m telling you it sounds hard,
but it"s one of the most powerful things those kids do.
They come back and they say, "I can®"t get a job." ™"That"s
your point. So if you want to get one stay with us and do
these things right, but you have to behave. You have to be
respectful and you have to not intimidate kids and you have

to go to class and you have to try,"” and they do.

We do lots of credit recovery things. The Plato
Program that Greg talked about we have -- fortunately we
have an alternative high school in our district and we work
hand in hand with them. Kids can take some classes there.
They can take our skilled trades class, our auto class, our
graphics class. They take our computer classes. And we
let them go back and forth between the two. And you think
about Mother Nature when 1 talk about things. You know, we
don"t teach squirrels to fly and we don"t teach fish to
climb trees, you know, so we take the best parts of every
kid in society and we have -- we honor all these things. |
mean, we can say what we want about -- whether it be

athletes that get paid more than all of us together --

which I don"t agree with but happens -- and you can take
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the people that are in acting -- | mean, they don"t have
Algebra I11; some of them can®t do Algebra Il1. They were
dropouts. And you can all think of the gifted people that
didn®t do well in high school and that are very successful

and have changed society.

So it"s not just that Algebra Il and drop out in

four years. |1 mean, | don"t agree with the Kkid that
doesn"t make it in four years is a dropout, just like I
don"t agree with it in college. There are kids that go
through -- some of the times those people have the very
best understanding of how kids struggle and how to bring
them on board in order to get them where they need to be.
And kids know that. That"s the relationship you build with
them. So that®"s -- to me that"s the key to the whole thing
with 1t. And we do things. We have study whiz. We do ABC
or no credit and have them come back with it. | mean, we
do the online classes. We do all of that stuff. We have a

great technology department.

But the biggest thing that I could tell you about

any of the dropout stuff -- and the research backs that

up —- is that the people that are in the building on an
everyday basis care about their success and their
happiness, just as iIf it was your kid. And if you do
things that way you"re going to eliminate many, many of the

dropouts. But there are times that kids need to be out of
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that happiness because they don®t behave well enough to be
in there, because you still have to -- no matter what you
think about the one kid that"s not -- is going to be out of
school, you®"ve got to think about the majority of all of
them. Because none of us want to send our kids to a place
that they have to worry about their safety or being
intimidated or feeling like they"re not a part of it. So
you have to teach them how to behave in school. And once
they"re there and they know you care about them they"ll do
much, much better academically.

And 1 offer it -- I mean, iIf you want to see that
1°d offer our school anytime at all. We do a good job with
it. We"ve gone to the trimesters. You asked earlier if we
were semesters. Trimesters is a great program. We are in
the second year with it and it"s a great program to help
kids catch up, stay with you and it"s really good. It
breaks i1t down to small parts, let"s them repeat it, get
them back. The problem with -- and it"s not an issue
because we did the Algebra in the two-year program; you
know, you take a half of year for one whole year. And your
question was good because you asked -- you know, so those
kids that passed they move on to the next one. Yeah,
that"s good. The first part of Algebra is very easy, they
move on to that; part two is not easy. So now they have

one small part left to try and get that. And what do you
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was.

And when you do that in two years for Algebra 1

what do you do when they get to Algebra 11?7 Algebra I is
easy compared to that stuff, and geometry -- so then what
you do is you run out of time in your four-year graduation
rate in order to get all the mathematics in. And the
world®s not all about mathematics. It"s important.
Statistics is probably as or more important than Algebra
I1. So that"s where we"re at with the whole thing with it
as far as where we"re at. But 1 didn"t prepare anything
else; just to come and talk about what we do with some of
our kids that struggle. To me that"s my answer with it.

UNIDENTIFIED PERSON: Thank you.

MR. KELL: You"re welcome. Thanks.

MR. SARPOLUS: Any questions?

MR. NAEYAERT: I mean, 1 would ask if you, you
know, could wave a magic wand and Fix the problem in
Michigan, you would say create caring adult relationships
with every student statewide if you had a magic wand?

MR. KELL: Well, and the key to that it"s not
just the kids. The kids are there. Everybody that comes
in the door you®"ve got to do that with. The key is the
people that you hire to work with them. And the problem

is, is that | don"t care how educated and how gifted they
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are it comes into personality, it comes into lots of things
with it. And that"s all a part of not just why -- Algebra
Il 1s not the answer for every kid being successful and all
of a sudden have a great society of jobs. It"s not the
answer with it. You"ve got to have people that just, I
mean, have personalities that care for kids. At whatever
end it takes they care about kids. 1 mean, 1"ve had
parents call -- 1*d pick them up from home to bring them to
school. We don"t have a truant officer. We can"t afford
one. But parents know and they trust. *Would you come and
get Joey? He won"t come again.” |1 mean, climb up to the
second floor and get him out of bed and drag him to school.

I was a middle school principal for a long time
and a high school principal for a long time too. So, |
mean, It"s just what -- and kids respond to that. They
know you"re not going there because you have a lot of extra
time. And you tell them that. You“"ve got to tell the Kids
that, you know, that "1"m doing this not because | want to
do it, I don"t have anything else to do, but I want your
fanny in school. You®"ve got to go to school.” And
eventually most of them do catch up.

I got an e-mail from a kid today that we had to
discipline hard when he was younger because he deserved it,
his mother told me that. She sent it back that the boy

just graduated from college and now he has a PhD and she
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just sent that back as an e-mail yesterday. And there®s
lots of those stories and lots of schools do it. But iIt"s
not just the fancy program that you call i1t; 1t"s the
bottom line basic thing about caring about kids and you do
things to help them get there. And Kkids read that; they
just know it.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. Anything else?

MR. MAGIN: Two things. One you mentioned Bill
Daggett and 1°ve worked considerably with -- Bill and I are
college classmates. He also was not an engineer; he"s a
business ed major, by the way. But he has really changed.
I mean, the original (inaudible) Bill will take credit for.
But 1 think he is now as convinced as you are that the
relationship, the third "R"™ is probably the key to
unlocking the first two.

MR. KELL: Yup.

MR. MAGIN: 1t makes no difference how relevant
and rigorous our education is. So thank you for focusing
as hard as you do down at your -- on the relationship part.
Because it is really what we"re hearing from several
places, whether it"s the mother, whether it"s the
alternative person, whether it"s the agency or so on. It
really is establishing a relationship that"s going to keep
the Kids in school so that maybe we can make a difference

with the curriculum part.

100
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MR. KELL: And the hard part is it might be the
very hardest part for anybody to change; whether it be the
state or Mike Flanigan or anybody else, that might be the
hardest part to change.

MR. SARPOLUS: That"s true. Actually, in a study
of students that we did in the spring is the fact there was
the fourth "R."™ When you do the other three they admit
that now they own the responsibility.

MR. KELL: That"s right. Very good. Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. Vicki Lashaway.

MS. LASHAWAY: Hello. 1™m Vicki Lashaway; 1™m a
mom. I don"t have a title but the "mom."™ 1"m a mother of
three and 1°m shaking because I"m nervous. My daughter is
a graduate of MYCA, Michigan Youth Challenge Academy.

Their website iIs ngycp.org/michigan; stands for National
Guard Youth Challenge Program. There is no waiting list.
There is a time frame for each class. It is not something
you can send your child to; your child has to want to go.
And just because she wants or he wants to go, you have to
do requirements.

First, you go and you check the program out.
It"s a four-hour ordeal. Since I"m a Flatrock resident we
had to go to Taylor to the armory and they explained the
program. You get to meet ambassadors. Ambassadors are the

cadets that are in the program that have -- that are able
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to go out and talk to troubled teens. During that
interview they split the child up from their parent or
their guardian and they do an agility test. The agility
test i1s doing situps and pushups and running a quarter
mile. And there you are given the packet to fill out. You
have to have two mentors. Your mentors have to -- it"s a
big -- it"s quite bit of paperwork they have to fill out,
but they have to do an FBI background check on the mentor.
They could not have gotten in any trouble throughout their
entire life in order to be a mentor.

Once you“ve Tilled out the packet and you®ve been
approved, then you get invited out to Battle Creek.

There®s only one location in Michigan and it"s Battle
Creek. There are 26 states that have this program. In 26
states there are 31 up and running facilities. This
program is ran by the National Guard and is supported by
all the armed services except for the Coast Guard. The
Coast Guard are water people; they don"t get involved iIn
the land issues. You"re not at all obligated to join the
service fTor doing this program.

I"m trying to think of as much as 1 can say real
quick. Col. Wemlinger in our visit there -- you only get
to see your child four times in five and a half months.

The first visit is after pre-challenge. 1It"s called Pre-

challenge Graduation Ceremony. You drop your child off and
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they do boot camp. And the child is stripped of their
life. They have to conform and do everything. It"s very
difficult.

Cycle 19, I was there for drop off and so I got
see what my child went to because she was cycle 18. And
it"s very overwhelming, it"s very hard but it works. My
daughter -- she didn"t have problems as far as drugs or
alcohol or problems with the law; she just had respect
problems at home and she had no desire for school. She"d
rather live out on the street and amount to nothing and
it’s like there was nothing that I could do to curtail
that. And a man, who 1 call my angel, told me about the
program.

And I feel that the program should be more
readily available. The principal knew but didn"t say
anything, because -- and I don"t know if you®re taking
money away from the school, but I feel you should be able
to say, "This child could really use an attitude
adjustment' or get the diploma or something where 1 feel
the school should have stepped in. They see the child, the
potential dropouts, and this should be more available to
our youth, our troubled teens. 1t is for the age 16- to
19-year-olds. They do community service. 1 believe iIt"s
40 hours of community service while they"re there. You get

to see your child four times. Your mentor has to see him
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with your four visits. Which 1 thought was unfair because
I wanted to see my kid more, but -- I wrote a letter --
Col. Wemlinger asked us to write a letter to our legislator
and let them know how we feel of the program.

And I"m going to say | feel like a teenager
because 1 evaluated everything and it"s like, "l can"t do
it. There®"s no way I can write this letter to my
legislator and say | approve of the program, I want
continued funding for this program.”™ And I dwelled on it
all night and I wrote a letter to Dr. Phil and I wrote an
eleven-page letter. Never heard from Dr. Phil but that was
okay, because then from that letter | addressed it to every
single legislator in the state of Michigan: every senator,
the two U.S. senators, to Jennifer Granholm, Mike Cox, and
John D. Dingle and it came up to be a total of 150 letters
that | e-mailed. Which took a long time because 1 did not
carbon copy, | did -- and I"m not computer literate at all.

I got 15 responses back; three of them were
through the mail, beautiful letters. The one that I
remember -- well, the last one | got was from John D.
Dingle which is a beautiful letter. Richard LeBlanc; he
wrote me within two hours. It was Friday night, late at
night and at 9:15 I got a response back from him thanking

me Ffor the letter. My letter explains from A to Z the --
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all the hoops you have to go through for this program. The

program is wonderful. You go there and you see these Kkids.

They can be in trouble with the law. The colonel -- the
program works with the courts to -- I"m not going to say
"erase.”" 1 don"t know what they do because I wasn"t there,

but 1 do know that they go and they help the law and help
the child get redirected in life. And my daughter has gone
back for cycle 19 when it"s visitation and has helped out
and volunteered.

And 1 just think it"s a beautiful program. And
my mission in life iIs to educate parents. You can see,
whether you®"re in church or if you"re at a football game
and you know somebody -- and if you don"t know someone, I™m
sure they know someone that will benefit from the program.
Because we all have people in our life and -- anyway that"s
my letter. |If you would like I will forward my letter to
you guys. I"ve got your e-mail. It just -- it tells
everything from A to Z about the program. And | know
you"re working on from kindergarten forward, which is -- it
has -- that has to be done. But the kids that we have now,
they need a chance. And if people are aware of this
program that"s one less dropout, one less person that"s
going to turn to crime or turn to the streets and they~ll
become productive. So any questions?

MS. McLELLAN: How many students do they take at
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a time iIn this program?

MS. LASHAWAY: There"s not a cutoff; it"s -- no,

no.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Inaudible).
MS. LASHAWAY: Our cycle is almost 200. It"s
a -- they have a cutoff. There is a certain time and a
cutoff for -- like right now there is a cutoff for cycle

20, but they"re not going to turn Kids away.

MR. SARPOLUS: Okay. Well, that®"s good to know
because we*ve heard other testimony in other parts of the
state just the counter. So this is good to know that there
is changes being made; that this has opened up to a lot of
kids, that they do qualify. That"s great.

MS. LASHAWAY: Now, when my daughter went there

was, | want to say 37 and I want to say 18 girls graduated
but I*m not -- you know what I"m saying? I1"m just know
that --

MR. SARPOLUS: That"s okay. But we want to know
more about it. We"ll do more investigation, but this iIs a
program that we"ve heard so many exciting things about.

MS. LASHAWAY: 1t is wonderful. I mean, they go
around the state and they do parades, you know. Like if
there is a parade iIn anywhere In the state of Michigan
they"1l go and do a parade and let the people of that town

see that they have this.
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MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you. We"ve got the website
and we"ve heard it, we"ve got It In our testimony in the
other places, so it will be a part of our report that we
submit to the legislature and the governor.

MS. LASHAWAY: Yeah. No, it"s absolutely a
wonderful program. And you don"t have to worry about your
child safety because they"re not going to -- they“re not
going to get in your child®"s face and strike them or
anything. They may get in their face and scream and yell
at them, but there®s not going to be any body contact. And
if they want them to do ten pushups then they have to do
ten pushups; you know, that®"s their thing. But the change
is unreal. It"s just -- it"s beautiful. It really is.

MR. MAGIN: Thank you for being here. Let me ask
you a question. You indicated that obviously your school
you thought knew about this but didn*"t tell you about it?

MS. LASHAWAY: Yes.

MR. MAGIN: Until after you approached them or
you had some --

MS. LASHAWAY: Yes.

MR. MAGIN: [If the school had brought this to
you, would you have thought it perhaps as 'they"re trying
to get rid of my daughter”™? What 1"m looking for is how
can the schools approach parents without making it look

like they just want to get rid of a child? How can they do
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MS. LASHAWAY: They told me there®s adult

education, and I"m like, "She doesn"t want to be here. You

know, she®s here because 1"m driving her here.” We"re at
school of choice and 1"m not going to drive -- I"ve two
other children that I"m driving to school. 1°"m not driving

her to adult ed and she"s either doing it here or forget
it, you know. 1 was given the information and 1 held onto
it. The man that gave it to me gave i1t to both my daughter
and I and I"m like, "No, thank you. [I°11 deal with my

child on my own. She®s my challenging child and I love her

and 1711 deal with her.” And it wasn"t until a year
later -- 1 had programmed this man"s phone number into my
phone because he was a baseball dad just -- his son and my

son were together.

And 1 called him up and 1 said, ""Hey, do you
remember me?'" And he®"s like, "Yeah." And 1 said, "Well,
remember that website you gave me, that NGY or"™ -- 1 didn"t
know it but he gave it to me. And he"s like just, "I"1I1
call you back and give it to you.”™ And 1 said okay. |
said, "Well, I checked it out a year ago and I liked i1t but
I wasn"t ready for it. My daughter was just turning 16 and
I wasn"t ready.” And so he gave me the number and 1 made
the call and -- but the seed was planted. So if the

schools know about it and they can see that these kids are
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needing an attitude adjustment -- not that they have to get
a diploma. 1 mean, it"s not, "Oh, we"re going to send your
kid there and you"re going to get a diploma.”™ It"s an
attitude adjustment. And they come back -- if they"re gone
from school during the school year they get the credits so
they"re not missing out because they are doing school work.
The first two weeks is the boot camp, and then after that

they attend school and it"s all credit.

109

MR. MAGIN: And you may not know this and Ed may

be able to find 1t. Who issues the school credit while
they"re there; do you know?

MS. LASHAWAY: Battle Creek.

MR. MAGIN: Who"s running the school program?

MS. LASHAWAY: Battle Creek Public.

MR. MAGIN: Battle Creek Public Schools?

MS. LASHAWAY: Uh-huh (affirmative).

MR. MAGIN: Thank you.

MS. LASHAWAY: Yeah, so --

MR. NAEYAERT: Thank you, Vicki, for sharing.

MS. LASHAWAY: Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you very much. And last
presenter before there"s any more cards -- if you want you
can fill them out, and if not Christine Leonarski.

MS. LEONARSKI: Hi. [I"m Christine Leonarski.

also have a son that"s in the Michigan Youth Challenge



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

110

Academy. | want to touch on a couple things too. |1 have
four kids and two of them have graduated from school. And
I"ve watched the school system change throughout the years
from -- my first son started out and he went to Young
Fives. They went to preschool and then he went to Young
Fives, which 1 thank the Lord every day for that program.
Well, then my next son he was going to school the next year
and the Young Fives was dropped. So then the school system
convinced me that, "You know what? Every child is ready
for developmental kindergarten.” Okay? So 1 kind of went
with it and said, "Okay." He had a August birthday. So he
went through the school, got to middle school and at the
middle school is where everything just fell apart and just
struggled from then on.

And 1 truly believe i1t"s the age when we start
these children at such a young age and we don"t have a
Young Fives program anymore, this maturity level that
catches up to them when they"re in the middle school and in
high school. And fortunately, you know, it turned out good
that -- he didn"t know what he wanted to do when he got out
of high school; went through two years and then he joined
the Air Force recently. So now the Air Force offers him
his education where they had just implemented into their
system where they give $80,000 for their GI Bill now and

it"s transferable to your children. So that has a happy
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But 1 think as far as the school system goes --
and 1 know I was told a lot of times -- because, you know,
I advocated too for it. You know, why do they start these
kids so young? And I realize that it"s to get them out of
some of the homes because they feel that some kids should
be in the schools then whether they“re in the homes at that
age. But when -- so 1™"m touching on basically when he said
as far as the preschool system and 1 do agree with that.
But I think if the kids were accepted into the school, if
we don"t have a Young Fives program, a year later it would
help these children too when they got to the middle school
and the high school as far as the maturity level and to
learn. So that"s what I have to say about that, but --

Okay. Michigan Youth Challenge Academy. 1™m
telling you what; we all need to advocate for this program
and make every parent aware that there is other options.
Because my son was involved in the court systems. And, you
know, he is a good kid but his problem in high school was
basically the acceptance. Okay? He wasn"t -- didn"t play
sports. You know, everybody loved him; fun-loving kid. So
this attention turned to basically class clown; trying to
get the attention of other kids, to always have approval to
be the center of attention. You know, and as a parent I

have no idea -- that"s just who he is.
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So it ended up where he was in the detention
center the last year and a half a hundred days. And i1t"s
sad to say, because when 1 went to all this as far getting
custody from his dad back from him and figure that out I™m
thinking a hundred days of this child®s life. You know, so
come to the point where he didn"t cut it in the Day/Night
Program, so they released him from that. And finally the
probation officer and the superintendent of the juvenile
center said, "If you don"t take custody of him" or "Will
you take custody of him, consider this, or we"re going to
make him a permanent resident.”

And that®"s when 1 said to her, "Yes, | want
custody of my son, but™ I said,” I don"t want him just
sitting in the condo all summer long watching TV, on the
Internet.” 1 said, "This isn"t going to do him no good.
He needs to be in a structured environment.”™ And that"s
where she said, ""The Michigan Youth Challenge Academy just
came here two weeks ago,'" and that"s how I found that
program. But iIf the schools -- and 1 know how you said how
does the schools -- so they"re not thrown out? But your
principals know iIf you have kids like my son that"s
struggling, you know, academic wise. You know, and they
follow the no tolerance pattern. Okay. Detention here,
detention there; expulsion one day here -- well, not

expulsion, suspended here, suspend there.
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Okay. Well, now you"re on a week suspension
because you had the suspension before that. So in the
meantime where®s his education, you know? And 1 mean, 1
understand the school has to have discipline. You know, 1|
agree with that. And I try to discipline my son at home
because 1 feel that"s not the school®s job, but there has
to be an alternative here for these kids that feel like
they don"t fit in and they“re trying to fit in.

And 1T 1 feel that if the school districts all
work with the academy, you know, for the kids that aren"t
going to have the opportunity to go to college or aren"t
that college bound because they just -- that isn"t their
direction and they find their self at the end, you know,
like my son did, you know, this is a perfect alternative.

I mean, he had like I think a 1.5 grade point average.

He"s 16 years old. He"s down at the academy right now;
it's 3.73 and this is math, this iIs science, you know, the
social studies. That"s all -- and he"s taking Vo-Tech,
which is welding, on top of that and -- this was a struggle
for me because he wants to go back to the high school. He
wants to earn his five credits, go back to the high school
and prove to everybody that he®"s going to graduate, you
know. So the letter from the school and this is where you
talked earlier about getting accepted back into the school.

Which East China School District will work with him to see
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if his credits are -- if he has enough credits to come back
to his grade level. Or he does have to go to the
alternative school to get those credits to come back to his
class at that, with that many credits.

So I guess what 1"m asking of all you, if you
could go on the website, check this program out. And I
know the colonel would be more than willing to have each
and every one of you come down and see the program
firsthand. And what I ask too iIs can they partner on your
website? Can they be a partner, that they -- their logo so
they can be clicked and can be found?

MS. COREY: 1 was going to just mention that the
Youth Challenge Academy actually is a partner in the
dropout summit for the fall and they®re also a partner on
what"s called the Shared Youth Vision Partnership, which is
sort of an interagency group. So I know that they“re -- 1
know of them pretty well because of their interaction and
they"re becoming really proactive in trying to get more
attention to their program and sort of working
collaboratively with other people. So just not for these
forums necessarily but they have been partners in a couple
of other statewide initiatives around dropout rates and
we"ve been glad to have them as partners for those
initiatives. So I think --

MS. LEONARSKI: Well, and when you have these
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public hearings if you would invite them in so that the
community iIs aware; where you“"re at the community is aware.
I mean, the colonel will come in; he"ll bring, you know,
some of his cadets then to show you firsthand, you know,
their success rate.

MR. NAEYAERT: I know that one of our futures
hearings just like this is going to be in Kalamazoo.

MR. SARPOLUS: In Kalamazoo.

MR. NAEYAERT: 1t"s the closest we"re getting to
Battle Creek and 1"m sure that --

MR. SARPOLUS: That"s pretty close.

MR. NAEYAERT: 1It"s close. 1°m sure that -- Ed,
we can make sure they -- that the colonel is invited.

MR. SARPOLUS: We can do that. And I"m sure that
if 1 don"t do it, you and I will work together on that.

MR. NAEYAERT: Yes. We"ll get the colonel in
Battle Creek.

MS. LEONARSKI: And as far as what the juvenile
system goes, what happens with that is they"re released
through the courts on a non-reporting probation is what
happens when they"re releasing to this program. But at the
same time iIf, say, they were to mess up and they were to
get kicked out of the program, the first call is made to
their probation officer and then they go back into the

court system. So it"s not like, you know, "You"re free out
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of here and you can do what you want." And they have to
earn that right to stay there.

And my son, his first letter home -- and let me
tell you this boot camp, this two-week boot camp -- so
you"re removing a teenager from television, from the
Internet; all -- it"s gone; it"s history. You know, so any
form of communication is a letter. The first letter let me
tell you, but after awhile -- but the first one coming
through one week there. And when they house them, 1 mean
it’s like a community housing at first with all the kids
there. He said, "I haven"t felt this good in I cant tell
you how long, Mom."™ | mean, so the self esteem, what they
work for when they"re in a structured environment --
because some kids just function in that environment.

And i1t goes back to my son with -- that
structured environment was fifth grade. Which he had,
which he was talking about; that teacher that he sat right
here in front of her desk. You know, there was the two of
them just like that. He shined that year because she made
that connection with him and cared about him for that
person. And at the academy they do basically the same
thing. Each child earns their right and they -- at Camp
Grayling last month they had a march review there where the
governor was there, the generals, and they went with all

the Army platoons and the National Guards from all over
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were doing a march review. And the academy was there.

And so 1 went up there. And my son writes iIn his
letter: *Mom," he said, "'l seen you there. 1 was so
excited,” but they couldn®"t make any contact with you. He
said, "But I didn"t want to mess up because 1 would lose in
the next phase of getting my beanie.” 1 mean, so that"s
just how important; just -- and you and 1 are like,

"Beanie?" you know, but that®"s just to earn that, you know.
So 1t"s just a rewarding program and 1°11 do everything I
can to advocate it. [1"1l be there October 20th if it"1l
make a difference. And I"m the same mom. 1°1l write
everyone out there that they -- there is alternative for
the kids that just can®"t find where they need to be at.

MR. MAGIN: Christine, do you know how Blong this
program has been in Michigan?

MS. LEONARSKI: This is the 19th class, so |
think --

MR. MAGIN: The 19th class.

MS. LEONARSKI: Yeah. They have two sessions,
two classes per year.

MR. MAGIN: Two a year, so this is its tenth year
then?

MS. LEONARSKI: Yeah. And it"s funded by the
National Guards and the State. And it"s just -- it"s

overwhelming. And when | was there at Camp Grayling 1 did
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have the opportunity to talk to Governor Granholm and 1
told her, "You need to do everything you can to keep this
program active."

MR. MAGIN: Thank you.

MR. SARPOLUS: Thank you very much, because this

MS. LEONARSKI: All right. Thank you for your

MR. SARPOLUS: Yes. Thank you. And we will try
to contact the colonel to be sure that he gets to Battle
Creek at our Kalamazoo conference.

MS. LEONARSKI: Okay. 1 appreciate that.
(Inaudible)

MR. SARPOLUS: Please, do that. And I°11 get it
to Katie and she"ll work with ensuring that we follow up
with him. Thank you. And you -- do you come from East
China Township?

MS. LEONARSKI: Actually, I live In Rochester.

MR. SARPOLUS: Okay. All right. 1 grew up in
East China Township so I1"m aware of it.

MS. LEONARSKI: (Inaudible).

MR. SARPOLUS: Okay. Thank you. Any other
questions or anything else?

(No verbal response)

MR. SARPOLUS: Well, 1 want to thank you all for
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your time on this busy day for you. This testimony is very
important. And I want to thank our panelists and our
sponsors because we are going to take all this back to the
October 20th summit, present this to the legislature and
the governor to show what we"ve learned out here and it"s
not just a pigeon hole and one size fits all. And 1 will
tell you the last two we"ve had now with the Youth
Government Challenge Camp has been amazing. Because again
even if it"s the early ones, you know, to wait all this
time, talk to some 300 people or whatever and now we"re
finally learning about this is very important to us.

So I want to thank you for this evening and if
you want to testify some more or other people, have them go
to our website. Thank you.

(Hearing concluded)
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